TOWN OF BETHEL BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING
JANUARY 7, 2025 @ 6:00 PM
BETHEL TOWN HALL
CALL TO ORDER
INVOCATION
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
APPROVAL OF PROPOSED AGENDA
CONSENT AGENDA-MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING:
1. Minutes from Regular Monthly Meeting December 2, 2024
F. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Provides an opportunity for residents to comment on any item included
on the agenda or to address the Town Board on any matter related to the Town of Bethel.
Comments are limited to 5 minutes).
G. PRESENTATIONS
1. Pitt County Parks and Recreation Director, Jennifer Lanier-Coward
2. Town of Bethel’s Grant Administrator Report, Kelsi Dew
H. OLD BUSINESS
1. Offer to Purchase Town Owned Lots (2)
2. Proposals: Municipal Lawn Care and Residential Debris Pick-up Services
3. Civic Arts Facilitator Resolution
I. NEW BUSINESS
1. 2025 Meeting Calendar
2. Amendment to Contract to Audit Accounts - 2024
3. OSFM (Office of State Fire Marshal) 50-50 Grants
4. Formal Dress Attire/Uniform for Fire Chief Lilley
5. NCLM 2025-2026 Biennium Legislative Goals
6. Budget/Finance Matters
J. DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS
1. INTERIM TOWN MANAGER
a. Monthly Town Public Safety Report (November 2024)
b. Financials for November 2024
c. Street Paving Report
d. Project Reports:
1. Stormwater Study
2. Smith Street Park Plan
3. Library Renovation
e. Next Board Meeting Date: February 4, 2025
2. FIRE DEPARTMENT
3. PUBLIC WORKS
4. TOWN ATTORNEY
K. ADJOURNMENT

HYOwR



MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING
BETHEL TOWN HALL
December 2, 2024

Present: Mayor Carl Wilson, Mayor Pro-Temp Barbara Bynum, Commissioner Ferrell Blount,
Commissioner Thomas Lilley, and Commissioner Tina Staton

Members of the Board Absent: Commissioner Fred Whitehurst

Staff Present: Interim Town Manager, D. Scott Elliott, Attorney, Keen Lassiter, Clerk, Linda
Sheppard, and Deputy Clerk, Jalissa Griggs

Call to Order

Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 6:06 P.M. and Mayor Pro-Temp Barbara Bynum
gave the invocation.

Mayor Wilson then led the pledge of allegiance.

Interim Town Manager made the suggestion to table the adoption of the Civic Arts Committee
Resolution until January 7, 2025 meeting; due to additional information not yet provided by
Holly Garriott, Pitt County Arts Council, Executive Director. Commissioner Blount expressed

his concerns about a resolution with Pitt County Arts Council because of their affiliation with
certain local organizations and clubs.

Mayor Pro Temp Barbara Bynum made a motion to table the adoption of the Civic Arts

Committee Resolution until January 7, 2025. Two voted for; Mayor Pro Temp Bynum and

Commissioner Staton. Two opposed; Commissioner Blount and Commissioner Lilley. Mayor
Wilson voted for, the motion carried.

Commissioner Lilley made a motion to approve the minutes Jrom the regular monthly meeting
on November 5, 2024, the motion carried unanimously.

No Public Comments

Presentations

Jennifer Lanier-Coward, Director of Parks and Recreation, Pitt County presentation has been
rescheduled to January 7, 2025.

New Business

The Town of Bethel received $513,421.58 in Federal ARPA Funds. In order to be in compliance
with all Federal guidance on the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021: Coronavirus State and



Local Fiscal Recovery Funds monies, the following series of documents were presented for
approval to prevent any payback to the Federal Government:

. Grant Project Ordinance for the Town of Bethel

. Resolution Adopting an Eligible Project Policy

. Resolution Adopting Financial Management and Internal Controls

. Resolution Adopting a Record Retention Policy

. Resolution Adopting a Nondiscrimination Policy

. Resolution Adopting a Conflict-of-Interest Policy

. Resolution Adopting a Policy for Allowable Cost and Cost Principles for Expenditures

Mayor Pro Temp raised the question of how the Town should spend Federal ARPA Funds.
Interim Town Manager answered that the funds could be considered spent on projects such as the
Stormwater System Analysis and paving of town streets.

Commissioner Staton made a motion to adopt the ordinance and six resolutions to be in
compliance with ARPA guidelines, the motion carried unanimously (See Attachment A).

Donald Foster has submitted an offer to purchase two (additional) Town owned parcels; 1441
and 1440: both on East Church Street. Both parcels have a tax value of $2,000 on each and Mr.
Foster is offering $750 for each parcel. Interim Town Manager raised the concern that the
amount collected from the buyer may not cover the costs of the sale of the two properties.
Interim Town Manager proposed a set minimum amount to collect from the buyer. Attorney

Keen and the Interim Town Manager were asked to meet and discuss a policy on how to handle
this.

Commissioner Blount made a motion to table the offer to purchase Jor parcels 1441 and 1440
Jrom Donald Foster until the January 7, 2025 meeting, the motion carried unanimously.

The Town of Bethel has rehired one of its former Public Works employees, Demetrius (Shawn)
Council, who first worked for the Town from February 2007 to June 2021. This was for a period
of over 15 years. Mr. Council left near the time when the Town was shutting down its Public
Works operation. As of October 31, 2024, Mr. Council has been reemployed by the Town as a
Maintenance Worker. Mr. Council is asking for the Town’s consideration to reinstate his time
previously worked in terms of calculating earned vacation hours and to reinstate his prior bank of

sick hours. He would earn 13 hours per month versus 9 hours and would be credited back 1226.5
hours of sick time.

The Town’s Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual has language for reinstatement of

employees (see attached). The language in Section 18 limits reinstatement to one year and
Interim Manager askes that the town make an exception to this policy.



Mayor Pro Temp Bynum made a motion to grant the exception request to Demetrius Council
and credit him back for time worked (15 years, 4 months) in terms of earning vacation hours
and reinstating prior unused sick hours, the motion carried unanimously.

The Town’s former Police Department had in its possession as evidence an AK47 Rifle for a
period of approximately ten years. This was being held as some type of evidence. In September
0f 2023, the Pitt County District Attorney’s Office released the holding of this firearm through a
“Petition and Order Disposing of Firearm Upon Prosecutor’s Petition”. The owner of this
firearm, Lamitri Cinchez Little, since the time of the release has been trying to get the firearm
back into his possession.

After the Bethel Police Department ceased from operation, the Pitt County Sheriff’s Office
conducted and inventory of the items that were in the Bethel Police Departments evidence vault.
This firearm now cannot be found.

Mr. Little has contacted the gun shop that sold his original rifle. In the manager’s on-going
discussions with Mr. Little about the value of new vs. used AK47 rifles, the Manager and Mr.
Little agreed, upon Town’s Board’s approval, of compensation in the amount of $675.00. If
approved, Mr. Little would be asked to sign a release in order to be paid the $675.00.

Mayor Pro Temp Bynum made a motion to approve compensation request for lost AK47 rifle
to Lamitri Cinchez Little in the amount of $675.00, the motion carried unanimously.

The Town of Bethel applied for and received a Rural Transformation Grant (RTG) in the amount
of $200,000. This initial funding will allow for some limited improvements. To move forward in
a more comprehensive way, it is proposed that a formal park plan be developed and consider
hiring Rivers and Associates to develop the plan for the Smith Street Park. With this plan, the
Town can then apply for a State grant funding known as PART-F (Parks and Recreation Trust-
Fund) that has a dollar-to-dollar match. It was proposed that $200,000 of RTG, as well as
$200,000 from fund balance, be allotted to match $400,000 of PART-F funds to give a total of
$800,000 towards Smith Street Park. Rivers and Associates has submitted a Professional
Services Agreement at a cost of $19,300.

It is proposed to utilize monies available in the SCIF (State Capital Infrastructure Fund) grant to
pay this expense.

Commissioner Staton made a motion to approve the Professional Services Agreement with

Rivers and Associates utilizing SCIF funds to pay for the Smith Street Park Development
Plan, the motion carried unanimously (See Attachment B).



Decomber 2, 2024

Ms. Debbie Tomasko

Secretary. Local Govermnment Commission
Deputy Treasurer

State and Local Govermnment Finance Division
3200 Atlantic Ave,

Raleigh, NC 27602

Subject: Response to Financial Performance Indicators of Concern for the year ended June 30.
2023.
Dear Ms. Tomasko:

The Town of Bethel submits this letter concerning its non-compliance with North Caroiina
statutcs regarding its 2023 audit. The following items are the Town's response 1o the zuditor's
significant deficiency findings:

Significant Deficiency Findings:

Timely Submission of Audit Report:

In accordance with G.S. 159-34, each unit of local government shall have its accounts
audited as soon as possible after the close of each fiscal vear. The audit for the year ended
June 30, 2023 was not completed until September 27, 2024.

The former finance officer resigned prior to providing all financial records for the zudit of the
year ended june 30, 2022. That audit was completed in early 2024. The finance staffand outside
accountant began compiling the information io complete the vear ended June 30, 2623. Now
that the audit for June 30. 2023 is complete. the Town has

begun working on the accounting
information needed for the June 30, 2024 audit.




The Town’s records were not kept in an orderly manner; the bank accounts were not
reconciled in z timely manner and the Board did not receive reguiar statements of financial
condition as required by NC General Statute 159-25.

Due to the reasons stated above. the records were not kept in an orderly fashion or up to date.
With the hiring of a new staff and an outside accountant, management fully intends to get the
records up to datz and maintain them accordingly.

The required semi-annual report on deposits on investments was filed late in violation of
NC
General Statute 159-33.

The former finance officer did not prepare Teports as required by bis position. All semi-annual
reports wili be filed and future reports will be submitted timely.

The Town’s expenditures for Public Safety and Debt Service of the General Fund exceeded

the approved budget authorization by 58,556 and $29,726 respectively for the vear ended
June 30, 2023.

Since the accounting records were not completed timely, the Board did not have the financiai
Iniormation needed (o make proper budget amendments, Management believes that once the
financial information is provided in 2 timely manner, budget amendments will be approved as
needed.

Please let us know if vou have any guestions,

Sincerely,

Mayor Carl Wilson

Mayor Pro Temp Barbara Bynum Commissioner Tina Staton

Commissioner Ferrell Biount Cormmissioner Frederic Whitehurst

Commissioner Thomas Lilley Finance Officer Scott Eliiott




Departmental Reports

The Interim Town Manager made the public safety report for the month of October from the
Sheriff’s Office.

Town of Bethel
Monthly Crime Statistic October 2024
November 4, 2024

Total Calis For Scrvice N= 114 (CAD Data)
Total Incident Reports N= 27

; Index Crimes l

Violent Crime ] Awoust 2024 i September 2024 i October 2024
Murder 0 0 i 0
Sexual Assauit 0 0 ‘ 0
Robberv 0 0 0
Assault 3 : 5 f 3

Property Crime i i !
' Burgiary 0 0 ! 0
Larcenv 2 2 C
" Auto Theft 0 0 0
Arson 0; 0 0

Total Pant I Crimes reporied N=24
(Numbers Based on the number of incident reports)

The most common Calls For Service prefomed with in the city of Bethel.

Traific Accident Report
Traffic Stops

Business Crhecks

Sex Offender Check
House Check

Alarm

Warrant Service

3
(SR R RS ¢ )
s
]
7
O

2re done in addition ‘o cails for service.)

)




The Interim Town Manager gave the financial report for the month of October as follows:

Town ¢f Sethe!

Cash Balance Report
Perioc Ending 10/31/2024

19/14/2024 10:20 AM Page 1/t
Bank 5 SOUTHERN BANK & TRUST Accsi- 5531103080
Account Balance
1C-102-0000 GENERAL FUND CHECKING $153,106.8C
30-102-0000 WATER AND SEWER CHECKING/SOUTE S0.CC
83-102-C0C0 ARP GRANT CHECKING $255.330.85
84-102-C0CT SCIF GRANT FUND CHECKING -317.916.88
83-102-0000 RTG CASH -52,43C.0C
_ Bank 3 Totai $388.030.8¢8
Bank §
Account Balance
10-157-0000 NCCMT INVESTMENTS 33.160.087.11
84-151-0005 NCCMT SCIF $234,884.43
Sank & Toal: $3.394.971.54
i Totzi Cash Balance: $3.783,082.43 |
Budget vs Actual
Town of Bethel
JN4i2024 103244 MM — . B Page 1 0Of
Pericd Ending 10/31/2024
10 GENERAL FUND
Deseriglion ... Budget  Encumbrance _ MTD _ QTD YD Variance  Percent
RCVEHUCS 5 . - bmmvym e s A % -
10-301-2017 2017 TAXES AD VALOREM o} 0.00 171.20 111.20 152.0¢ 152.04
10-301-2018 2018 TAXES AD VALOREM 0 0.00 0.02 0.00 117.25 117.25
10-301-2019 2019 TAXES AD VALOREM 0 0.0c 0.00 0.0 83.32 83.32
10-301-2022 TAXES AT VALOREM 2022 o} 0.00 13.86 13.86 1,187.51 1,187.51
10-301-2023 TAXES AD VALOREM 2023 10,000 0.00 504.53 504.53 2.398.26 (7.601.74)  24%
10-307-2024 2024 Taxes Ad Valcrem 443,000 0.00 17,884 .38 17,884.38 203.461.81 (239,538.19)  46%
10-317-0000 TAX PENALTIES AND 1,000 0.0 176.92 176.92 690.47 (309.53)  69%
INTEREST
10-319-0000 MOTOR VEHICLE TAX 52,000 0.00 8.967.04 8,967.04 25,620.56 (26,379.44)  49%
10-320-000C MOTOR VEHICLE FEE $5.00 4,700 0.00 0.0C 0.0c 2.00 {4,7CC.C0)
10-328-0000 ZONING COMPLIANCE FEES 500 0.0C 0.00 0.00 350.00 (150.00) 70%
10-322-00C0 INTEREST EARNED ON 120,000 0.00 12,739.82 12.739.82 49,570.05 (70.429.95)  41%
INVESTMENTS
10-33C-00C0 INTEREST EARNED ON 2.700 0.00 86.39 86.39 678.88 {2,021.12) 25%
CHECKG
10-331-00C0 FACILITY RENTAL FEES 1,020 0.0C {200.00) {200.00) 0.0c (1.000.00)
10-335-00C0 MISCELLANEGUS REVENUE 1,000 0.00 206.18 206.18 246,18 (753.82)  25%
10-337-0000 UTILITIES FRANCHISE TAX 69,000 .00 0.0C 0.0C 17,738.53 (51.261.47)  26%
10-341-C000 BEER AND WINE TAX 5,200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (6.200.00)
10-343-0000 POWELL BILL 55,000 0.00 0.00 ©.00 30.356.18 (24,643.82) 55%
10-344-0000 SCLID WASTE DISPOSAL TAX 1,000 0.0 0.00 0.00 258.52 (741.48) 26%
10-345-000C LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 460,000 0.00 39.395.13 39,395.13 82.156.73 (377.843.27) 18%
10-346-0008 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES 3.50C 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 {3.500.00)
10-351-0C0C COURT COSTS, FEES AND 0 0.00 2.00 2.00 13.50 13.50
CHARGES
10-350-0000 GARBAGE FEES 103,824 0.02 4,393.72 4,393.72 50,671.73 (53,152.27)  49%
10-361-0000 CEMETERY REVENUES 15,000 0.00 1,600.00 1.600.00 6.400.00 (8.800.00)  43%
10-383-0000 SALE OF FIXED ASSETS o 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.800.00 9.800.00
10-392-01C0 FIRE DEPARTMENT 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.820.00 2,820.00




Town of Bethel

Budget vs Actual

REPAIR

11/14/2024 10: AMC — ) Page 2 Of§
Pericd Ending 10/31/2024
10 GENERAL FUND
Description s e BOGGEL Encumbrance MTD o0 > S . Vornes  Patednt
?;-Laosg-AogE PITT CO FIRE TAX 60.000 0.0C 2.022.32 2,022.32 23.206.95 (35.793.05)  39%
10-397-0000 FUND BALANCE APPR. 98.548 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (£8.548.00)
RESTRICTED
10-398-0063 TRANSFER FROM ARPA FUND 344,058 .00 22,166.67 22,166.67 88.666.68 (255,391.32)  26%
10-399-0000 FUND BALANCE 195,502 0.00 0.05 0.c0 0.c0 {195,502.00)
APPROPRIATED
10-620-92C0 PLAYER FEES o 0.00 250.00 . 25000  250.00
- ’ Revenues Totals: 2.047.532 T o.00 110.327.16 596.895.15  (1.450,636.85) 25%
Expenses B o o . ST ek : i SRS FETES Sk
10-410-0200 SALARIES 23.700 0.00 1.400.00 1,4C0.00 5.600.00 18,100.00  24%
10-410-0500 FICAMEDICARE 1,375 0.00 130.086 130.06 520.24 1,354.76  28%
10-410-1400 TRAINING AND TRAVEL 9.000 0.00 300.00 300.00 1.608.24 7.391.76 18%
10-410-3300 SUPPLIES 1.000 0.00 0.00 0.00 C.0 1,000.00
GOVERNING 30DY Totals: 35,575 2.00 1,830.06 1,830.06 7.728.48 '27.846.52 22%
10-420-0200 SALARIES 770.000 0.0¢ 11.797.50 11.797.50 38,245.56 131,754.44 22%
10-420-0400 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 12,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.600.00
10-420-0410 LEGAL FEES 35,050 0.00 3.150.00 3,150.00 25,225.00 9,775.00 72%
10-420-0420 ACCOUNTING FEES 15,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,159.86 3,840.14 74%
10-420-0500 FICA/MECICARE 13,000 0.c0 202.52 902.52 2.925.81 10,074.19  23%
10-420-0700 RETIREMENT EXPENSE 23,200 6.00 458.98 458.98 1,621.52 21.578.48 7%
10-420-08C0 401 K RETIREMENT 8.500 0.00 168.00 158.00 593.53 7.906.47 7%
10-420-09C0 JANITORIAL SERVICES 0 0.0¢ 600.09 €0C.00 1,200.00 {1,200.00)
10-420-10C0 BANK SERVICE CHARGES o} 0.00 428 4.26 (12.13) 12.13
10-¢20-11C0 TELEPIHONE 3,000 0.00 79.47 79.47 317.70 2,682.30 11%
10-£20-13C0 UTILITIES 16.000 ©.00 745.89 745.89 2.321.48 13,678.52 15%
10-420-14C0 TRAINING AND TRAVEL 5.600 0.00 507.35 507.35 1.326.86 3.673.14 27%
10-420-1500 BUILDING MAINTENANCE & 2,500 0.00 0.00 0.00 615.00 1,885.00  25%
REPAIRS
Budget vs Actual
Towmn of Bethel
11472024 10:32:44 AM s Page 3015
Pericd Ending 10/31/2024
10 GENERAL FUND
. ...... Descrpion Budget Encumbrance MTD ... Qo - YTD Variance  Percent
10-420-1600 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANGE 1.000 0.00 1,418.50 1.418.50 1,418.50 (418.50) 142%
AND REPA
10-420-17C0 PENALTIES 26,000 0.00 0.0 0.05 2.00 26,000.00
10-420-3100 VEHICLE OPERATION 2.500 0.00 0.00 2.00 0.00 2,500.C0
10-420-3300 OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,000 6.co0 137.27 137.27 1.570.35 2.429.65  39%
10-420-3400 SUPPLIES 2.000 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.089.46 910.54 54%
1C-420-4500 CONTRACTED SERVICES 45,000 0.00 2,202.77 2.202.77 15.593.74 29.406.26  35%
10-420-5300 DUES 4.300 0.00 0.00 ©.00 1.193.00 3,107.60  28%
10:420-540C INSURANCE 37.6350 ¢.00 5.737.82 5,737.82 32.944.43 £,705.57  88%
10-420-5401 HEALTH INSURANCE 29,000 0.00 842.76 842,76 4.247.37 24,752.63 15%
10-420-5760 MISCELLANEQUS 1,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,885.10 (885.10)  189%
10-420-8999 CONTINGENCY 50.000 . 0.00 0.00 ~ ©.o0 10,0C0.00 40,000.00  20%
ADMINISTRATION-GF Totals: 505,650 0.00 28,753.09 28,753.09 155.482.14°  350,167.86 31%
10-440-4500 TAX COLLECTION FEES PITT 6.000 0.00 386.66 386.66 4,005.50 1,994.50 67%
COUNTY
" TAX COLLECTION PITT COUNTY Tolals: 6,050 0.00 386BE 386.66 " 4.005.50 199450  67%
10-510-130C UTILITIES 1,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 196.51 803.48  20%
10-510-340C SUPPLIES [ 0.00 0.00 0.0c 82.99 (82.99)
10-510-45C0 CONTRACTED SERVICES 225.600 0.00 14,938.04 14,938.04 61.254.22 163.745.78  27%
10-510-46C0 ANIMAL CONTROL 2.500 0.0¢ 0.00 0.00 0.c0 2.500.0¢
| POLICE DEPARTMENT TYolals: 228.500 0.00° 14,938.04 14,938.04 81,533.72 "166,966.28  27%
70-530-0200 SALARIES 36,420 c.00 2.422.00 2.422.00 8.946.00 27.474.00  25%
10-530-0500 FICA 2,808 0.00 185.31 185.34 584.40 2,123.60  24%
10-530-0900 RETIREMENT/PENSICN FUND 2.600 0.00 8.00 $.00 0.00 2,000.00
10-530-1100 TELEPHCNE 2.500 0.0¢ 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00
10-530-1300 UTILITIES 3.800 0.00 414.42 414.12 3.418.24 381.76  90%
10-530-1400 TRAINING AN TRAVEL 2,500 ¢.00 0.00 0.00 1.922.72 577.28 77%
10-530-1500 BUILDING MAINTENANCE & 9,500 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.409.60 6,080.40  36%




Town of Bethe!
11/14/2024 10:32:44 AM

Budget vs Actual

Pericd Ending 10/31/2024

10 GENERAL FUND

Page 4 Of5

Description _ Budget Encumbrance . MTD Q1D ) YTD__ Varlarjgg Percent
10-530-1600 EQUIP/EQUIP. MAINTENANGE 20.500 0.00 0.00 0.00 424.00 19,576.00 2%
10-530-3100 VEHICLE OPERATION 20,000 0.00 c.00 0.00 9.465.89 10,534.11  47%
10-530-3101 GAS 3.500 0.00 35.57 35.57 105.01 3.394.99 3%
10-530-3300 SUPPLIES 8.00C 0.00 1477.28 1.477.28 3.655.16 4£,344.84  46%
10-530-4500 CCNTRACTED SERVICES 2.000 0.00 78.00 78.00 806.00 1.194.00 40%
1C-520-5300 DUES AND SUSSCRIPTIONS 730 0.00 14,471.00 14,471.00 14.949.75 {14,199.75) 1993%
10-530-5400 INSURANCE 18,575 0.00 c.co ) 0.00 1,5984.20 16,981.00 9%

FIRE DEPARTMENT Totals: 132,353 0.0C i2,083.28 19,083.28 48,380.77 82,972.23° 37%
10-560-0200 SALARIES 132,200 .00 6.077.40 6.077.40 25,213.26 106.986.74  19%
10-560-0500 F.1.C.A/MEDICARE 70,200 0.c0 267.32 267.32 1,558.28 864162 5%
10-560-0700 RETIREMENT 18,108 0.00 477.34 477.34 2,782.73 15,317.27 15%
+0-560-0800 407 K RETIREMENT 8,700 0.00 174.72 174.72 1,018.56 568144  15%
10-560-1300 UTILITIES 46,000 0.00 7.864.62 7.864.62 24.593.83 21,406.17  53%
10-560-1500 STREETS MAINTENANCE ] 0.00 331.85 331.86 331.86 (331.886)
10-560-1600 EQUIP/EQUIP. MAINTENANCE 10.000 521.08 0.00 0.00 2,698.17 6780.74  32%
10-560-2400 Employee Uniforms 2.080 0.00 136.19 136.19 811.80 1,268.20  39%
10-560-3100 VEHIGLE OPERATION ] 0.00 0.00 0.0¢ 3.89 (3.89)
10-560-3101 GAS 1.300 0.00 295,23 295.23 1,348.71 (48.71)  104%
10-560-3300 SUPPLIES 22,820 0.0¢ 1.763.28 1.763.28 8,221.89 14,698.11  36%
10-560-4500 CONTRAGTED SERVICES 59,000 0.00 5.900.00 6.200.00 23.360.70 45639.30  34%
10-560-5401 HEALTH INSURANCE 28.512 0.00 776.23 776.23 5,483.00 23.028.00  19%
10-560-570C MISCELLANECUS 1,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.000.00
10-560-7000 CAPITAL OUTLAY 152,200 0.00 5.00 0.00 71.756.23 80,443.77  47%
10-560-720C RESERVE FOR PAVING 400,600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 400,000.00
o STREET DEPARTMENT Totals: 200,212 " 521.08 25,064.19 2508419 169.183.01 730.507.60 " 15%
10-580-4500 CONTRACTED SERVICES 84,500 0.00 7.076.30 7.076.30 21,173.76 63,326.24  25%
SANITATION DEPARTMENT Totals: 84,500 0.00 707630 7.076.30 2137376 63326.24  25%
10-620-0002 COMMUNITY EVENT 5.000 0.00 5,000.0C 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 100%
EXPENSES
Budget vs Actual
Town of Bethel
11/14/2024 50:32:44 AM e S B} . Page 5 0rs
Period Ending 10/31/2024 .
10 GENERAL FUND
... __Description . __ Budget _Encumbrance MTD QTD YTD Variance  Percent
10-620-0200 SALARIES 17,000 0.00 458.00 458.00 151500  15485.00 9%
10-520-0500 FICA 1,350 0.00 28.27 29.27 110.12 1,239.88 8%
10-520-1300 UTILITIES 400 0.00 23.66 23.66 118.30 28176 30%
10-620-1500 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 25,000 0.09 0.00 0.03 291.02 24,708.98 %
10-620-160C EQUIPMENT 525 175.0 0.00 c.co 0.00 350.00  33%
10-620-3300 SUPPLIES 1.00C 0.00 0.00 0.c0 139,18 860.84  14%
10-520-4500 CONTRACTED SERVICES 1.500 0.00 320.00 320,00 856.95 843.05  57%
RECREATION DEPARTMENT Totals: 51,775 175.00 5,830.93 5.830.93 8.030.55 43,589.45  16%
10-630-1300 UTILITIES 3.400 0.00 192.99 192.99 355.92 3.044.08  10%
10-630-1500 BUILDING MAINTENANGE 5,000 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 5.00C.00
10-630-4500 CONTRACTED SERVICES 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 75.00 (75.00)
0-630-9100 SHEPPARD ALLCCATION _ 21,108 0.c0 0.00 0.00 21.108.00 0.00  100%
LIBRARY Totals: 29.508 0.00 192.89 192.99 2153892 7esa08  73%
10-640-3300 SUPPLIES 1,000 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
. 10-840-4500 CONTRACTED SERVICES 21,000 0.00 525.00 : 9
' EMETERY DEPARTMENT Totals: 22,000 0.00 525,00 gﬁg.gg ;:ﬁ:gg :33;2‘23 1?
& 2 K R 11%
10-650-0900 JANITORIAL ¢ 0.00 200.00 200.00 200.0C (2¢¢.00)
10-850-1300 UTILITIES 4,600 0.00 804.36 804.36 2.274.22 232578  49%
10-650-1500 BUILDING MAT. AND REPAIR 5,000 c.00 0.00 0.00 32.69 4,967.31 1%
10-650-3300 SUPPLIES 1,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
10-650-4500 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES e 0.00 2653 265.00 740.00 (740.00)
SENIOR CENTER Totals: 10.600 0.00 1,269,368 1,269.36 32481 7.353.09  31%
10-818-9000 CONTINGENCY 29,027 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.c0 29,027.00
Toals: 29,027 0.0¢ 0.60 0.00 0.00 29,027.00
197903-1000 FIRE TRUCK DEST SVC ) 11,832 0.00 986.00 986.C0 3.844.C0 33%
DESBT SERVICE Totals: 11,832 0.00 986.00 985100 ' 384450 7, 33%
Expenses Tolals: 2,047,532 695.09 105,935.90 105,935.90 507,772.76  1,539,063.15  25%
10 GENERAL FUND Revenues Over/(Under) Expenses: 4.418.86 4,418.86 89,122.39




It was announced that the Christmas Parade will be held December 14, 2024, at 10:00am. The
Christmas Tree Lighting will be held on December 7, 2024, at 6:00pm at the gazebo.

It was mentioned that the insurance to cover the Christmas Parade was researched with JW Rook
& Son. Currently, the Town has a $1,000,000 policy in place and a $2,000,000 umbrella to total
$3,000,000. An additional $2,000,000 to $5,000,000 coverage could be purchased for about $750
to $900. However, the Interim Town Manager and JW Rook & Son’s recommendation was to
keep the coverage as is. The Christmas Parade event has been filed with the insurance carrier.

The next monthly meeting will be held January 7, 2025.

Fire Department

Fire Chief Lilley presented a bill from Fire Connection for a hose for $1,700, a quote from CW
Williams for $11,020 for 5 sets of fire turnout gear needed for new recruits, and a quote from
Fire Connection for $22,000 to replace 5 outdated air bags, that includes a warranty, 20 attack
hoses, steward reducers, rapid extrication gear, and 2 lights for the fire truck. He would like to
use the 50-50 state grant to fund the turnout gear and the other items to fix the truck.

Fire Chief Lilley proposed $15,000 from the Town to fund the 50-50 grant and include 2
additional sets of gear for a total of $30,000.

Interim Manager suggests the Town take $11,020 from the Contingency Fund to immediately

pay for 5 sets of gear and to revisit the 50-50 grant application at the next monthly meeting on
January 7, 2025.

The question was asked if the Non-Profits division of the Volunteer Fire Department have any
funds to contribute to the gear or 50-50 grant? Fire Chief Lilley answered that the funds have
already been allocated to an awning on the fire truck. Fire Chief Lilley also stated that the Fire
Department gave $5,000 last year towards the 50-50 grant and that he would research to see if
they would do the same or more for next year and have an answer by the next monthly meeting
on January 7, 2025. A suggestion was made to have a grant writer that would look for

opportunities and grants for the Town of Bethel. Fire Chief Lilley commented that 2 new engine
would be required in 2025.

Chief Lilley reported that there had been 3 structural fires in the city limits in 2024.

Commissioner Staton made a motion to approve the quote from CW Williams for $11,020 to
purchase 5 sets of fire turnout gear, the motion carried unanimously.

Fire Chief Lilley reported that the fire truck repairs have been completed. The 1935 fire truck,

“Pluto” repairs have been completed. The Boston Butt sale was a success and there will be a
chicken sale with chickens donated from Perdue, in March 2025.

Public Works



The refurbished Christmas decorations have been installed on the light poles around town and
library.

Town Attorney

Attorney Lassiter had no comments.

Commissioner Lilley made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:1 8pm, the motion carried
unanimously.

Mayor, Carl Wilson

ATTEST:

Linda Sheppard, Town Clerk

Date



ATTACHMENT A

GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE FOR
TOWN OF BETHEL
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT OF 2021: CORONAVIRUS STATE AND
LOCALFISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS

BE IT ORDAINED by the Town of Bethel, North Carolina, that the following grant project
ordinance is hereby adopted:

Section 1: This ordinance is to establish a budget for projects to be funded by the Coronavirus
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds of H. R. 1319 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021
(ARP/CSLFRF). The Town of Bethel (Town) has received the total allocation of $513,421.58.

Thes funds may be used for the following categories of expenditures to the extent authorized by
state law.

1. Support public health expenditures, by fanding COVID-19 mitigation efforts, medical
expenses, behavioral healthcare, and certain public health and safety staff;

2. Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency, including
economic harms to workers, households, small business, impacted industries, and the
public sector;

3. Replace lost public sector revenue, using the funding to provide government services to

the extent of the reduction in revenue experienced due to the pandemic;

Provide premium pay for essential workers, offering additional support to those who have

borne and will bear the greatest health risks because of their service in critical

infrastructure sectors; and,

5. Investin water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, making necessary investments to
Improve access to clean drinking water, support vital wastewater and stormwater
infrastructure, and expand access to broadband internet.

Section 2: The town has elected to take the standard allowance, as authorized by 31 CFR Part
35.6(d)(1) and expend all tis ARP/CSLFRF funds for the provision of government services.

Sectior 3: The foliowing amount is recognized as grant revenue is appropriated for transfer to
the General Fund:

Transfer out to General Fund $513,421.58

ARP/CSLFRF Funds $513,421.58



Section 4: The Finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain sufficient specific detailed
accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the grantor agency and the grant agreements.

Section 5: The Finance Officer is hereby directed to report the financial status of the project to
the governing board on a monthly basis.

Section 6: Copies of the grant project ordinance shall be furnished to the Budget Officer, the
Finance Officer, and to the Town Clerk.

Section 7: This grant project ordinance expires on December 31, 2026, or when all the CSLFRF
funds have been obligated and expended by the Town, whichever occurs sooner. '

Adopted this 2™ day of December 2024.

Mayor

Attested by:

Clerk



RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN ELIGIBLE PROJECT POLICY FOR THE EXPENDITURE
OF AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT OF 2021 CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL
FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS FOR BETHEL, NORTH CAROLINA

WHEREAS, the Town of Bethel, has received an allocation of funds from the Coronavirus

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds of H.R. 1319 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021
(ARP/CSLFRF); and

WHEREAS, US Treasury is responsible for implementing ARP/CSLFRF and has enacted a
Fina] Rule outlining eligible projects: and

WHEREAS, the funds may be used for projects within these categories, to the extent
authorized by state law.

1. Support COVID-19 public health expenditures, by funding COVID-19 mitigation and
prevention efforts, medical expenses, behavioral healtheare, preventing and
responding to violence, and certain public health and safety staff
Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency, including
economic harms to households, small businesses, non-profits, impacted industries,

and the public sector:

3. Replace lost public sector revenue, using this funding to provide government services

to the extent of the reduction in revenue experienced due to the pandemic;

Provide premium pay for essential workers, offering additional support to those who

have borne and will bear the greatest health risks because of their service in critical

infrastructure sectors; and,

5. Investin water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, making necessary investments
to improve access to clean drinking water, support vital wastewater and stormwater
infrastructure, and to expand access to broadband internet; and

WHEREAS, the ARP/CSLFRF are subject to the provisions of the federal Uniform Grant
Guidance, 2 CFR Part 200 (UG), as provided in the Assistance Listino- and

WHEREAS, US Treasury has issued a Compliance and Reporting Guidance v.2.1

15. 2021) dictating implementation of the ARP/CSLFRF award terms
requirements; and

ovember
and compliance

WHEREAS, the Compliance and Reporting Guidance states on page 6 that



PAGE2

Per 2 CFR Part 200.308, your organization must develop and implement effective
internal controls to ensure that funding decisions under the SLFRF award constitute
eligible uses of funds, and document determinations.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town of Bethel hereby adopts and enacts the
following Eligibility Determination Policy for ARP/CSLFRF funds.

Eligibility Determination Policy for American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 Coronavirus
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

This policy defines the permissible and prohibited uses of the Coronavirus State and Local
Fiscal Recovery Funds of H.R. 1319 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP/CSLFRF) funds.

It also outlines the procedures for determining how Town of Bethel will spend its
ARP/CSLFRF funds.

I. PERMISSIBLE USES OF ARP/CSLFRF FUNDING

US Treasury issued its Finai Rule regarding use of ARPA funds on January 6, 2022. (The
Final Rule is effective as of April 1, 2022. Until that date, a local government may proceed
under the regulation promulgated by US Department of the Treasury in its Interim Final
Rule or the Final Rule.) The Final Rule (and the Interim Final Rule) identify permissible
uses of ARP/CSLFRF funds and certain limitations and process requirements. Local
governments must allocate ARP/CSLFRF funds no later than December 31, 2024 and
disburse 2all funding no later than December 31, 2026. Failure of an entity to expend all funds
by December 31, 2026 will result in forfeiture of ARPA funds.

ARP/CSLFRF funds may be used for projects within the following categories of expenditures:
1. Support COVID-19 public health expenditures, by funding COVID-19 mitigation and

prevention efforts, medical expenses, behavioral healthcare, preventing and

responding to violence, and certain public health and safety staff:

Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency, including

economic harms to workers, households, small businesses, non-profits, impacted

Industries, and the public sector;

3. Replace lost public sector revenue, using this funding

to provide government services
to the extent of the reduction in revenue experienced

due to the pandemic;
4. Provide premium pay for essential workers, offering additional support to those who
have borne and will bear the greatest health risks b

ecause of their service in critical
infrastructure sectors; and

Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, making necessary investments
to improve access to clean drinking water, support vital wastewater and stormwater
infrastructure, and to expand access to broadband internet; and



PAGE3

II. PROHIBITED USES OF ARPA FUNDING
The ARP/CSLFRF and US Treasury’s Final Rule prohibit certain uses of ARP/CSLFRF

funds. Specifically, ARP/CSLFRF funds may not be used for projects within the following
categories of expenditures: -

1.

w

~l

The Town of Bethel, and any of its contractors or
ARP/CSLFRF funds for these purposes.

To make a deposit into a pension fund that constitutes an extraordinaxy payment
of an accrued, unfunded liability (Note that routine contributions as part of a
payroll obligation for an eligible project are allowed.);

To borrow money or make debt service payments;

To replenish rainy day funds or fund other financial reserves;

To satisfy an obligation arising from a settlement agreement, judgment, consent
decree, or judicially confirmed debt restricting in a judicial, administrative, or
regulatory proceeding (There is an exception to this prohibition if the settlement
or judgment requires the Town of Bethel to provide services to respond to the
COVID-19 public health emergency or its negative economic impacts or to provide
government services, then the costs of those otherwise ARP/ CSLFRF-eligible
projects are allowed.);

For a project that includes a term or condition that undermines efforts to stop the
spread of COVID-18 or discourages compliance with recommendations and
guidelines in CDC guidance for stopping the spread of COVID-19:

In violation of the conflict-of-interest requirements imposed by the award terms
and 2 CFR 200.318(c).

For any expenditure that would violate other applicable federal, state, and local
laws and regulations.

subrecipients, may not expend any

III.PROCEDURES FOR PROJECT APPROVAL

The following are procedures for ARP/CSLFRF project approvals. All Town of Bethel
employees and officials must comply with these requirements.

i. Requests for ARP/CSLFRF funding,
following:

must be made in writing and include all the

a. DBrief description of the project

b. Identification of ARP/CSLFRF Expenditure Category (EC) (A List of ECs is in
the Appendix to the US Treasury Compliance and Reportine Guidance.)

c. Required justifications for applicable projects, according to the requirements
in the Final Rule. Employees or any applicant seeking ARPA funding should

review the Final Rule and Final Rule Overview prior to

Proposed. budget, broken down by cost item, in accord,

Bethel’s Allowable Cost Policy.




PAGE 4

=1

e. A project implementation plan and estimated implementation timeline (Al
ARP/CSLFRF funds must be fully obligated by December 31, 2024, and fully
expended by December 31, 2026.)

Requests for funding must be submitted to the Bethel Town Manager for approval.
All requests will be reviewed by the Bethel Town Manager for ARP/CSLFRF
compliance and by the Bethel Town Manager for allowable costs and other financial
review.

No ARP/CSLFRF may be obligated or expended before final written approval by the
Bethel Town Manager subject to the Governing Board approval.

If a proposal does not meet the required criteria, it will be returned to the requesting
party for revision and resubmittal.

Following approval, employees responsible for implementing the project must conform
actual obligations and expenditures to the pre-approved project budget. Changes in
project budgets must be approved by the Bethel Town Manager and may require 2
budget amendment before proceeding. Any delay in the projected project completion
date shall be communicated to the Bethel Town Manager immediately.

The Bethel Town Manager must collect and document required information for each
EC, for purposes of completing the required Project and Expenditure reports.

The Bethel Town Manager must maintain written project requests and approvals, all

supporting documentation, and financial information at least until December 31,
2031.

I, Carl Wilson, Mayor of the Town of Bethel, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a

true and correct copy of the resolution ado
December 2, 2024.

Attest:

pted by the Town of Bethel at its meeting held on

Mayor

Clerk



RESOLUTION ADOPTING FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
POLICIES FOR BETHEL, NORTH CAROLINA

WHEREAS, the Town has received an allocation of funds from the Coronavirus State and

Local Fiscal Recovery Funds of H.R. 1319 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP/ CSLFRP);
and

WHEREAS, it is the policy of the Town to follow federal requirements related to financial
management and internal controls;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Coramission, acting as the governing board
for financial matters for the Town of Bethel to the authority recited herein, hereby adopts
and enacts the following financial management and internal controls policy:

Town of Bethel Financial Management and Internal Controls Policy

The Commission, acting on behalf of the Town, agrees to and directs Commission staff to
comply with the following financial management and internal controls requirements
related to funds associated with the ARP/ CSLFRF award:

Current Internal Controls and Financial Management Practices of the Town
of Bethel (Exhibit A)

s 2 CFR 200.302 Financial management
e 2 CFR 200.308 Internal controls
e All other applicable federal laws and regulations

I, Carl Wilson, Mayor of the Town of Bethel, DO HERERY CERTIFY
true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by
at its meeting held on December 2, 2024.

that the foregoing is a
the Town of Bethel Board of Commissioners

Mayor



Attest:

Clerk



Exhibit A: Current Internal Controls and Financial Management Practices

of the Town of Bethel

Cash Receipts Process

When the daily mail delivery arrives, the office manager takes note and makes
deposits to the bank on a weekly basis.

A copy of the deposit slip and bank confirmation is forwarded to the Finance Officer
(FO) and Deputy finance officers (DFO).
The deposits are entered into the computer system by the DFQ.

Reconciliation of cash receipts to the bank statement 1s done monthly by the CPA
and DFO.

Cash Disbursement Process

Invoices come in through mail or vendor visit; the office manager takes invoices.
Office manager verifies that the invoice is correct and valid.

Office manager sends the invoice to FO and/or DFO.

FO looks over available cash balance, unit’s budget, and approves invoices.

DFO writes out checks and mails them. Two signatures are on each check — Mayor
and DFO.

A copy of the check and invoice information 1s entered into the computer system.

Reconciliation of the checks to the bank statement is done monthly by the CPA and
DFO.

Financial Management Practices

L)

All transactions are entered into Southern Softwar

e by the DFO and is available
monthly.

The budgetary compliance is tracked using the data from Southern Software.
ARPA dollars are being tracked in Southern Software by the CPA and FO.



RESOLUTION ADOPTING A RECORD RETENTION POLICY FOR

DOCUMENTS CREATED OR MAINTAINED PURSUANT TO THE ARP/CSLFRF

AWARD FOR BETHEL, NORTH CAROLINA

WHEREAS, the Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“CSLFRF”) Award Terms and
Conditions and the Compliance and Reportine Guidance set forth the U.S. Department of
Treasury’s (“Treasury”) record retention requirements for the ARP/CSLFRF award; and

WHEREAS, it is the policy of the Town of Bethel to follow Treasury’s record retention
requirements as it expends CSLFRF pursuant to the APR/CSLEFRF award;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Town of Bethe] hereby adopts and enacts the

following Records Retention Policy for Documents Created or Maintained Pursuant to the
ARP/CSLFRF Award.

Specifically, the Town of Bethel agrees to the following:

Retain all financial and programmatic records related to the use and expenditure of

CSLFRF pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF award for a period of five (5) vears after all
CLFRF funds have been expended or returned to Treasury, whichever is later.

Retain records for real property and equipment acquired with CSLFRF for fve years
after final disposition.

Ensure that the financial and programmatic records retained sufficiently evidence
compliance with section 603(¢c) of the Social Security Act “ARPA,” Treasury’s
regulations implementing that section, and guidance issued by Treasury regarding
the foregoing.

Allow the Treasury Office of Inspector General and the Government Accountability
Office, or their authorized representatives, the right of right of timely and
unrestricted access to any records for the purpose of audits or other investigations.

If any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the d-year period,

the records will be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving
the records have been resolved.



Covered Records: For purposes of this policy, records are information, regardless of
physical form or characteristics, that are created, received, or retained that evidence the
Town of Bethel's expenditure of CSLFRF funds on eligible projects, programs, or activities
pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF award.

Records that shall be retained pursuant to this policy include, but are not limited to, the
following:

e Financial statements and accounting records evidencing expenditures of CSLFRF
for eligible projects, programs, or activities.

e Documentation of rationale to support a particular expenditure of CSLFRF (e.g.,
expenditure constitutes a general government service);

» Documentation of administrative costs charged to the ARP/CSLFRF award;

e Procurement documents evidencing the significant history of a procurement,
including, at 2 minimum, the rationale for the method of procurement, selection of
contract type, contractor selection or rejection, and the basis for contract cost or
price;

s Subaward agreements and documentation of subrecipient monitoring;

* Documentation evidencing compliance with the Uniform Guidance property
management standards set forth in 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.310-316 and 200.329;

e Personnel and payroll records for full-time and part-time employees compensated
with CSLFRF, including time and effort reports; and

e Indirect cost rate proposals

Storage: The Town of Bethel’s records must be stored 1n a safe, secure, and accessible

manner. Wherever practicable, such records should be collected, transmitted, and stored in
open and machine-readable formats.

Departmental Responsibilities: Any department or unit of the Town of Bethel, and its
employees, who are responsible for creating or maintaining the covered documents in this
policy shall comply with the terms of this policy. Failure to do so may subject the Town of
Bethel to civil and/or eriminal Liability. Any employee who fails to comply with the record

retention requirements set forth herein may be subject to disciplinary sanctions, including
suspension or termination.

The Bethel Town Manager is responsible for identifying the documents that the Town of
Bethel must or should retain and arrange for the proper storage and retrieval of records.

Bethel Town Manager shall also ensure that all personnel subject to the terms of this policy
are aware of the record retention requirements set forth herein.

Reporting Policy Violations: The Town of Bethel is committed to enforcing this policy as

it applies to all forms of records. Any employee that suspects the terms of this policy have
been violated shall report the incident immediately to that employee’s supervisor. If an
employee is not comfortable bringing the matter up with the supervisor, the employee may



bring the matter to the attention of the Town Governing Board. The Town of Bethel
prohibits, any form of discipline, reprisal, intimidation, or retaliation for reporting incidents

of inappropriate conduct of any kind, pursuing any record destruction claim, or cooperating
in related investigations.

Questions About the Policy: Any questions about this policy should be referred to Bethel
Town Manager at 252-818-0891 or manager@townofbethelnc.com, who is in charge of
administering, enforcing, and updating this policy.

I, Carl Wilson, Mayor of Town of Bethel, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true

and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the Bethel Board of Commissioners at its
meeting held on December 2, 2024.

Mayor

Attest:

Clerk



RESOLUTION ADOPTING A NONDISCRIMINATION POLICY
FOR BETHEL, NORTH CAROLINA

WHEREAS, the Town of Bethel has received an allocation of funds from the “Coronavirus
State Fiscal Recovery Fund” or “Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund” (together
“CSLFRF funds”), established pursuant to Sections 602 and 603 of the Social Security Act,

as added by Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, Pub. L. No. 117-2 (the
“ARP/CSLFRF award™): and

WEEREAS, CSLFRF funds are subject to the U.S. Department of Treasury (“Treasury”)
regulations, including the Final Rule, the Award Terms and Conditions, and the Title VII
implementing regulations at 81 C.F.R. Part 22; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF Award Terms and Conditions, and as a
condition of receiving CSLFRF funds, the Town of Bethel agrees to follow all federal
statutes and regulations prohibiting diserimination in its administration of CSLFRF under
the terms and conditions of the ARP/CSLFRF award, including, without limitation, the
following:

i. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §§ 20004 et seq.) and Treasury’s
implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 22, which prohibit discrimination on the
basis of race, color, or national origin within programs or activities receiving federal
financial assistance;

il. The Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et
seq.), which prohibits discrimination in housing on the basis of race, color, religion,
national origin, sex, familial status, or disability;

iii. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1978, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability

under any program or activity
receiving Federal financia] assistance;

iv. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq.), and
Treasury’s implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 23, which prohibit
discrimination on the basis of age 1n programs or activities receiving federal
financial assistance; and

v. Title [T of

the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (42U.S.C. §§
12101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under
programs, activities, and services provided or made available by state and local
governments or instrumentalities or agencies thereto.



PAGE2

NOW THEREFCRE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town of Bethel hereby adopts and enacts
the following nondiscrimination policy, which shall apply to the operations of any program,

activity, or facility that is supported in whole, or in part, by expenditures CSLFRF pursuant
to the ARP/CSLFRF award.

Nondiscrimination Policy Statement

It is the policy of the Town of Bethel to ensure that no person shall, on the ground of race,
color, national origin (including limited English Proficieney), familial status, sex, age, Or
disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the befits of, or be otherwise subject
to discrimination under any program or activity administered by the Town of Bethel],
including programs or activities that are funded in whole or part, with Coronavirus State
and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds ("CSLFRF™), which the Town of Bethel received from the
U.S. Department of Treasury (“Treasury”) pursuant to Sections 602 and 603 of the Social

Security Act, as added by Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, Pub. L.
No. 117-2 (herein the “ARP/CSLFRF award”)

L Governing Statutorv & Regulatory Authorities

As required by the CSLFRF Award Terms and Conditions, the Town of Bethel shall ensure
that each “activity,” “facility,” or “program™! that is funded in whole, or in part, with
CSLFRF and administered under the ARP/CSLFRF award, will be facilitated, operated, or
conducted in compliance with the following federal statutes and federal regulations
prohibiting discrimination. These include, but are not limited to, the following:

i. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §§ 20004 et seq.) and Treasury’s
implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 22, which prohibit discrimination on the
basis of race, color, or national origin under programs or activities receiving federal
financial assistance;

ii. The Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42U.8.C. §§ 3601 et
seq.), which prohibits discrimination in housing on the basis of race, color, religion,
national origin, sex, familial status, or disability;

fil. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disabili
receiving federal financial assistance;

ty under any program or activity

* 22CF.R.§22.3 defines “program” and “activity” as all operations of an entity, including local governments, that
receive Federal financial assistance, and the departments, agencies, or special purpose districts of the local
governments to which Federal financial assistance is distributed. “Federal financial assistance” includes, among
other things, grants and loans of federal funds. “Facility” inciudes all or any part of structures, equipment, or other
real or personal property or interests therein, and the provision of facilities includes the construction, expansion,
renovation, remodeling, alteration, or acquisition of facilities.



PAGE 3

iv.

IL.

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq.), and
Treasury’s implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 23, which prohibit
discrimination on the basis of age within programs or activities receiving federal
financial assistance; and :

Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (42U.S.C. §§
12101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under
programs, activities, and services provided or made available by state and local
governments or instrumentalities or agencies thereto.

Discriminatorv Practices Prohibited in the Administration of the
ARP/CSLFRF Award

To ensure compliance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and Title 31 Code of
Federal Regulations, Part 22, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 » and other pertinent
nondiscrimination authorities, the Town of Bethel shall prohibit, at a minimum, the
following practices in its administration of CSLFRF pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF award:

1.

2.

(V]

=~

Denying to a person any service, financial aid, or other program benefit without good
cause;

Providing to 2 person any service, financial aid, or another benefit which is different
In quantity or quality, or is provided in a different manner, from that provided to
others under the program.

Subjecting a person to segregation or separate treatment in any matter related to
the receipt of any service, financial aid, or other benefit under the program;
Restricting a person in the enjoyment of any advantages, privileges, or other
benefits enjoyed by others receiving any service, financial aid, or other benefit under
the program;

Treating a person differently from others in determining whether that person
satisfies any admission, enrollment, quota, eligibility, membership, or other
requirement or condition which bersons must meet to be provided
financial aid, or other benefit provided under the program;
Implementing different standards, eriteria, or other requirements for admission,
enrollment, or participation in planning, advisory, contractual, or other integral
activities to the program;

Adopting methods of administration which, directly or through contractual
relationships, would defeat or substantially
nondiscrimination;

Selecting 2 site or location of facilities with the purpose or effect of excluding persons
from, denying them the benefits of, subjecting them to discrimination, or with the

purpose or effect of defeating or substantially impairing the accomplishment of the
objectives of Title VI or related acts and regulations;

any service,

Impair the accomplishment of effective



PAGE 4

9. Discriminating against any person, either directly or through a contractual

agreement, in any employment resulting from the program, a primary objective of

which is to provide employment;

10.

Committing acts of intimidation or retaliation, including threatening, coercing, or
discriminating against any individual for the purpose of interfering with any right
or privilege secured by any pertinent nondiscrimination law, or because an

individual made a complaint, testified, assisted, or participated in an investigation,

1.

)

proceeding, or hearing.

Reporting & Enforcement

The Town of Bethel shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review
activities by the Department of the Treasury. Enforcement may include
investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any
settlement agreements that may result from these actions. The Town of Bethel
shall comply with information requests, on-site compliance reviews, and
reporting requirements.

The Town of Bethel shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Treasury of
any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin
(including limited English proficiency) covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964 and Implementing regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all
such reviews or proceedings based on the complaint, whether pending or
completed, including the outcome. The Town of Bethel shall inform the Treasury
1 it has received no complaints under Title VI.

Any person who believes they have been aggrieved by a discriminatory practice
under Title VI has a right to file a formal complaint with the Treasury. Any such
complaint must be in writing and filed with the Treasury’s Title VI Coordinator

within one hundred eighty (180) days following the date of the alleged
discriminatory occurrence.

Any person who believes that because of that person’s race, color, national origin,
limited English proficiency, familial status, sex, age, religion, or disability that
he/she/they have been discriminated against or unfairly treated by the Town of

. policy should contact the following office within 180
days from the date of the alleged discriminatory occurrence-

Office of the Bethel Town Manager
141 West Railroad St
Bethel, North Carolina 27812



PAGE 5

I, Carl Wilson, Mayor of the Town of Bethel, DO HERERY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a

true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the Bethel Board of Commissioners at its
meeting held on December 2, 2024.

Mayor

Attest:

Clerk



RESOLUTION ADOPTING A CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY
APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTS AND SUBAWARDS OF BETHEL, NORTH CAROLINA
SUPPORTED BY FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

WHEREAS, the Town of Bethel desires to be compliant with adopting a Conflict of Interest
Policy applicable to contracts and subawards supported by Federal Financial Assistance:

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town of Bethel hereby adopts and enacts

the following Conflict of Interest Policy Applicable to Contracts and Subawards of Town of
Bethel Supported by Federal Financial Assistance.

I, Scope of Policy

a. Purpose of Policy. This Conflict of Interest Policy (“Policy”) establishes conflict
of interest standards that (1) apply when the Town of Bethel (“Unit”) enters
into a Contract (as defined in Section II hereof) or makes 2 Subaward (as

defined in Section II hereof), and (2) meet or exceed the requirements of North
Carolina law and 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c).

b. Application of Policy. This Policy shall apply when the Unit (1) enters into a
Contract to be funded, in part or in whole, by Federal Financial Assistance to
which 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c) applies, or (2) makes any Subaward to be funded
by Federal Financial Assistance to which 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c) applies. Ifa
federal statute, regulation, or the terms of a financial assistance agreement
applicable to a particular form of Federal Financial Assistance conflicts with

any provision of this Policy, such federal statute, regulation, or terms of the
financial assistance agreement shall govern.



PAGE 2

II. Definitions

Capitalized terms used in this Policy shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in this
Section II: Any capitalized term used in this Policy but not defined in this Section II shall
have the meaning set forth in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1.

a.

“COI Point of Contact” means the individual identified in Section IT1(a) of this
Policy.

“Contract’ means, for the purpose of Federal Financial Assistance, a legal
instrument by which the Unit purchases property or services needed to carry
out a program or project under a Federal award.

“Coniractor” means an entity or individual that receives a Contract.
“Covered Individuel” means a Public Officer, employee, or agent of the Unit.

“Covered Nonprofit Organization” means a nonprofit corporation, organization,
or association, incorporated or otherwise, that is organized or operating in the
State of North Carolina primarily for religious, charitable, scientific, literary,
public health and safety, or educational purposes, excluding any board, entity,
or other organization created by the State of North Carolina or any political
subdivision of the State (including the Unit).

“Direct Benefitf” means, with respect to a Public Officer or employee of the Unit,
or the spouse of any such Public Officer or employee, (i) having a ten percent
(10%) ownership interest or other interest in a Contract or Subaward; (ii)
deriving any income or commission directly from a Contract or Subaward; or
(1) acquiring property under a Contract or Subaward.

“Federal Financial Assistance” means Federal financial assistance that the
Unit receives or administers in the form of grants, cooperative agreements,
non-cash contributions or donations of property (including donated surplus
property), direct appropriations, food commodities, and other Federal financial

assistance (except that the term does not include loans, loan guarantees,
interest subsidies, or Insurance).

“Governing Board” means the Bethel Board of Commissioners of the Unit.

“Immediate Family Member” means, with respect to any Covered Individual,
() a spouse, and parents thereof, (i) a child, and parent thereof, (ii1) a parent,
and spouse thereof, (iv) a sibling, and spouse thereof, (v) a grandparent and
grandchild, and spouses thereof, (vi) domestic partners and parents thereof,



PAGE 3

including domestic partners of any individual in (ii) through (v) of this
definition; and (vii) any individual related by blood or affinity whose close
association with the Covered Individual is the equivalent of a family
relationship.

“Involved in Making or Administering’ means () with respect to a Public
Official or employee, (a) overseeing the performance of a2 Contract or Subaward
or having authority to make decisions regarding a Contract or Subaward or to
interpret a Contract or Subaward, or (b) participating in the development of
specifications or terms or in the preparation or award of a Contract or
Subaward, (ii) only with respect to a Public Official, being 2 member of a board,
commission, or other body of which the Public Official is a member, taking

action on the Contract or Subaward, whether or not the Public Official actually
participates in that action.

“Pass-Through Entity” means a non-Federal entity that provides a Subaward
to a Subrecipient to carry out part of a Federal program.

“Public Officer” means an individual who is elected or appointed to serve or
represent the Unit (including, without Limitation, any member of the

Governing Board), other than an employee or independent contractor of the
Unit.

. “Recipient” means an entity, usually but not limited to a2 non-Federal entity,

that receives a Federal award directly from a Federal awarding agency. The

term does not include Subrecipients or individuals that are beneficiaries of the
award.

- “Related Party” means (i) an Immediate Family Member of a Covered

Individual, (ii) a partner of a Covered Individual, or (iii) a current or potential
employer (other than the Unit) of a Covered Individual, of a partner of a

Covered Individual, or of an Immediate Family Member of a Covered
Individual.

“Subaward” means an award provided by a Pass-Through Entity to carry out
part of a Federal award received by the Pass-Through Entity. It does not

include payments to a contractor or payments to a contractor or payments to
an individual that is a beneficiary of a Federal program.

“Subcontract” means any agreement entered into by a Subcontractor to furnish
supplies or services for the performance of a Contract or a Subcontract. It



PAGE 4

IIL.

IV.

5.

includes, but is not limited to, purchase orders, and changes and modifications
to purchase orders.

“Subcontractor” means an entity that receives a Subcontract.

“Subrecipient” means an entity, usually but not limited to a non-Federal entity,
that receives a subaward from a Pass-Through Entity to carry out part of a
Federal award; but does not include an individual that is a beneficiary of such

award. A subrecipient may also be a recipient of other Federal awards directly
from a Federal awarding agency.

“Unit” has the meaning specified in Section I hereof.

COI Point of Contact.

a. Appointment of COI Point of Contact. Bethel’s Town Manager, an employer of

the Unit, shall have primary responsibility for managing the disclosure and
resolution of potential or actual conflicts of interest arising under this Policy.
In the event that the Town Manager is unable to serve in such capacity,
Bethel's Town Clerk shall assume responsibility for managing the disclosure
and resolution of conflicts of interest arising under this Policy. The individual
with responsibility for managing the disclosure and resolution of potential or

actual conflicts of interest under this Section ITI(a) shall be known as the “COI
Point of Contact”.

b. Distribution of Policy. The COI Point of Contact shall ensure that each

Covered Individual receives a copy of this Policy.

Conflict of Interest Standards in Contracts and Subawards

a. North Carolina Law. North Carolina law restricts the behavior of Public

Officials and employees of the Unit involved in contracting on behalf of the
Unit. The Unit shall conduct the selection, award, and administration of
Contracts and Subawards in accordance with the prohibitions imposed by the
North Carolina General Statutes and restated in this Section III.

1. G.S. § 14-234(2)(1). A Public Officer or employee of the Unit Involved
in Making or Administering a Contract or Subaward on behalf of the
Unit shall not derive a Direct Benefit from such a Contract or Subaward

o. G.S. § 14-234(a)(3). No Public Officer or employee of the Unit may
solicit or receive any gift, favor, reward, service, or promise of reward,



PAGE S

1v.

i.

including but not limited to a promise of future employment, in
exchange for recommending, influencing, or attempting to influence the
award of a Contract or Subaward by the Unit.

G.S. § 14-234.3. If a member of the Governing Board of the Unit serves
as a director, officer, or governing board member of a Covered Nonprofit
Organization, such member shall not (1) deliberate or vote on =2
Contract or Subaward between the Unit and the Covered Nonprofit
Corporation, (2) attempt to influence any other person who deliberates
or votes on a Contract or Subaward between the Unit and the Covered
Nonprofit Corporation, or (3) solicit or receive any gift, favor, reward,
service, or promise of future employment, in exchange for
recommending or attempting to influence the award of a Contract or
Subaward to the Covered Nonprofit Organization

G.S. § 14-234.1. A Public Officer or employee of the Unit shall not, in
contemplation of official action by the Public Officer or employee, or in
reliance on information which was made known to the public official or
employee and which has not been made public, (1) acquire a pecuniary
interest in any property, transaction, or enterprise or gain any
pecuniary benefit which may be affected by such information or other
information, or (2) intentionally aid another in violating the provisions
of this section.

b. Federal Standards.

Prohibited Conflicts of Interest in Contracting. Without limiting any
specific prohibition set forth in Section IV (@), a Covered Individual may
not participate in the selection, award, or administration of 2 Contract

or Subaward if such Covered Individual has a real or apparent conflict
of interest.

1. Real Conflict of Interest. A real conflict of interest shall exist
when the Covered Individual or any Related Party has a
financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from
a firm considered for a Contract or Subaward. Exhibit A
attached hereto provides a non-exhaustive list of examples of (1)
financial or other interests in a firm considered for a Contract or

Subaward, and (i) tangible personal benefits from a firm
considered for a Contract or Subaward.



PAGE6

2. Apparent Conflict of Interest. An apparent conflict of interest
shall exist where a real conflict of interest may not exist under
Section IV(b)(@)(1), but where a reasonable person with
knowledge of the relevant facts would find that an existing
situation or relationship creates the appearance that a Covered
Individual or any Related Party has a financial or other interest
in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a

Contract or Subaward.

1. Identification and Management of Conflicts of Interest.

1. Duty to Disclose and Disclosure Forms

a. Each Covered Individual expected to be or actually

involved in the selection, award, or administration of a
Contract or Subaward has an ongoing duty to disclose to
the COI Point of Contact potential real or apparent
conflicts of interest arising under this Policy.

. Prior to the Unit's award of a Contract or Subaward, the

COI Point of Contact shall advise Covered Individuals
expected to be involved in the selection, award, or
administration of the Contract or Subaward of such duty.

If the value of a proposed Contract or Subaward exceeds
$250,000, the COI Point of Contact shall collect a Conflict
of Interest Disclosure Form contained in Exhibit C (for
Contracts) and Exhibit E (for Subawards) from each
Covered Individual and file such Conflict of Interest
Disclosure Form in records of the Unit.

Identification Prior to Award of Contract or Subaward.

a. Prior to the Unit’s award of a2 Contract or Subaward, the

COI Point of Contact shall complete the appropriate
Compliance Checklist contzined in Exhibit B (for
Contracts) and Exhibit D (for Subawards) attached

hereto and file such Compliance Checklist in the records
of the Unit.

3. Management Prior to Award of Contract or Subaward



PAGE 7

a. If, after completing the Compliance Checklist, the COI

Point of Contact identifies a potential real or apparent
conflict of interest relating to a proposed Contract or
Subaward, the COI Point of Contact shall disclose such
fnding in writing to the Town Attorney and to each
member of the Governing Board. If the Governing Board
desires to enter into the proposed Contract or Subaward
despite the identification by the COI Point of Contact of

a potential real or apparent conflict of interest, it may
either:

1. accept the finding of the COI Point of Contact and
direct the COI Point of Contact to obtain
authorization to enter into the Contract or
Subaward from (2) if Unitis a Recipient of Federal
Financial Assistance, the Federal awarding
agency with appropriate mitigation measures, or
(b) if Unit is a Subrecipient of Federal Financial
Assistance, from the Pass-Through Entity that
provided a Subaward to Unit; or

1. reject the finding of the COI Point of Contact and
enter into the Contract or Subaward. In rejecting
any finding of the COI Point of Contact, the
Governing Board shall in writing document a
justification supporting such rejection.

b. If the COI Point of Contact does not identify a potential

real or apparent conflict of interest relating to a proposed
Contract or Subaward, the Unit may enter into the
Contract or Subaward in accordance with the Unit’s
purchasing or subaward policy.

Identification After Award of Contract or Subaward.

a. If the COI Point of Contact discovers that a real or

apparent conflict of interest has arisen after the Unit has
entered into a Contract or Subaward, the COI Point of
Contact shall, as soon as possible, disclose such finding
to the Town Attorney and to each member of the
Governing Board. Upon discovery of such a real or
apparent conflict of interest, the Unit shall cease all



PAGE 8

payments under the relevant Contract or Subaward until
the conflict of interest has been resolved.

5. Management After Award of Contract or Subaward.

a. Following the receipt of such disclosure of a potential real
or apparent conflict of interest pursuant to Section
IV(b)(i1)(4), the Governing Board may reject the finding
of the COI Point of Contact by documenting in writing a
justification supporting such rejection. If the Governing
Board fails to reject the finding of the COI Point of

Contact within 15 days of receipt, the COI Point of
Contact shall:

L

if Unit is a Recipient of Federal Financial
Assistance funding the Contract or Subaward,
disclose the conflict to the Federal awarding
agency providing such Federal Financial
Assistance in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.112
and/or applicable regulations of the agency, or

if Unit is a Subrecipient of Federal Financial
Assistance, disclose the conflict to the Pass-
Through Entity providing a Subaward to Unit in
accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.112 and applicable
regulations of the Federal awarding agency and
the Pass-Through Entity.



PAGE 9

V.

VI

Oversight of Subrecipient’s Conflict of Interest Standards

a. Subrecipients of Unit Must Adopt Conflict of Interest Policy. Prior to the Unit’s

execution of any Subaward for which the Unit serves as a Pass-Through Entity,
the COI Point of Contact shall ensure that the proposed Subrecipient of
Federal Financial Assistance has adopted a conflict of interest policy that

satisfies the requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c)(1), 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c)(2),
and all other applicable federal regulations.

Obligation to Disclose Subrecipient Conflicts of Interest. The COI Point of
Contact shall ensure that the legal agreement under which the Unit makes a
Subaward to a Subrecipient shall require such Subrecipient to disclose to the
COI Point of Contact any potential real or apparent conflicts of interest that
the Subrecipient identifies. Upon receipt of such disclosure, the COI Point of
Contact shall disclose such information to the Federal awarding agency that
funded the Subaward in accordance with that agency’s disclosure policy.

Gift Standards

a. Federal Standard. Subject to the exceptions set forth in Section VI(b), a

Covered Individual may not solicit or accept gratuities, favors, or anything of
monetary value from a Contractor or a Subcontractor.

Exception. Notwithstanding Section VI(z), a Covered Individual may accept
an unsolicited gift from a Contractor or Subcontractor of one or more types
specified below if the gift has an aggregate market value of $20 or less per
Source per occasion, provided that the aggregate market value of all gifts

received by the Covered Individual pursuant to this Section VI(b) does not
exceed $50 in a calendar year:

1. honorariums for participating in meetings;
4. advertising items or souvenirs of nominal value; or

1i. meals furnished at banquets.

Internal Reporting. A Covered Individual shall report any gift accepted under
Section VI(b) to the COI Point of Contact. Ifrequired by regulation of a Federal
awarding agency, the COI Point of Contact shall report such gifts to the

Federal awarding agency or a Pass-Through Entity for which the Unit is a
Subrecipient.



PAGE 10

VIL

I, Carl Wilson, Mayor of the Town of Bethel, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that th.

Violations of Policy

a. Disciplinary Actions for Covered Individuals. Any Covered Individual that

fails to disclose a real, apparent, or potential real or apparent conflict of
interest arising with respect to the Covered Individual or Related Party may
be subject to disciplinary action, including, but not limited to, an employee’s
termination or suspension of employment with or without pay, the
consideration or adoption of a resolution of censure of a Public Official by the
Governing Board, or termination of an agent’s contract with the Unit.

Disciplinary Actions for Contractors and Subcontractors. The Unit shall
terminate any Contract with a Contractor or Subcontractor that violates any
provision of this Policy.

Protections for Whistleblowers. In accordance with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, the Unit
shall not discharge, demote, or otherwise discriminate against an employee in
reprisal for disclosing to any of the list of persons or entities provided below,
information that the employee reasonably believes is evidence of gross
mismanagement of a federal contract or grant, a gross waste of federal funds,
an abuse of authority relating to a federal contract or grant, a substantial and
specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or
regulation related to a federal contract (including the competition for or
negotiation of a contract) or grant: (i) a member of Congress or a representative
of 2 committee of Congress; (ii) an Inspector General: (iii) the Government
Accountability Office; (iv) a Treasury or other federal agency employee
responsible for grant oversight or management; (v) an authorized official of the
Department of Justice or other law enforcement agency; (vi) a court or grand
jury; of (vil) 2 management official or other employee of the Unit, a Contractor,

or Subcontractor who has the responsibility to investigate, discover, or address
misconduct.

e foregoing is a

true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the Bethel Coard of Commissioners at its
meeting held on December 2, 2024.



PAGE 11

Mayor

Attest:

Clerk



PAGE 12

EXHIBIT A
Examples

Potential Examples of a “Financial or
Other Interest”in a Firm or
Organization Considered for a
Contract or Subaward

Potential Examples of a “Tangible
Personal Benefit” From a Firm or
Organization Considered for a
Contract or Subaward

Direct or indirect equity interest in a firm or
organization considered for a Contract or
Subaward, which may include:
- Stock in a corporation.
- DMembership interest in a limited
liability company.
- Partnership interest in 2 general or
limited partnership.
- Any right to control the firm or
organization’s affairs. For example,
a controlling equity interest in an
entity that controls or has the right
to control a firm considered for a
contract.
- Option to purchase any -equity
interest in a firm or organization.

Opportunity to be employed by the firm
considered for a contract, an affiliate of that
firm, or any other firm with a relationship
with the firm considered for a Contract.

A position as a director or officer of the firm
or organization, even if uncompensated.

Holder of any debt owed by a firm
considered for a Contract or Subaward,
which may include:

- Secured debt (e.g., debt backed by an
asset of the firm (ike a firm's
building or equipment))

- Unsecured debt (e.g., a promissory
note evidencing a promise to repay a
loan).

o Holder of a judgment against
the firm.

A referral of business from a firm considered
for a Contract or Subaward.

Supplier or contractor to a firm or
organization considered for a Contract or
Subaward.

Political or social influence (e.g., a promise
of appointment to a local office or position on
a public board or private board).




RESOLUTION ADOPTING A POLICY FOR ALLOWARBLE COSTS
AND COST PRINCIPLES FOR EXPENDITURE OF AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT
CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS
FOR BETHEL, NORTH CAROLINA

WHEREAS, the Town of Bethel, has received an allocation of funds from the Coronavirus

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds of H.R. 1319 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021
(ARP/CSLFRF); and :

WHEREAS, the funds may be used for projects within these categories, to the extent
authorized by state law:

1. Support COVID-19 public health expenditures, by funding COVID-19 mitigation and
prevention efforts, medical expenses, behavioral healthcare, preventing and
responding to violence, and certain public health and safety staff:

2. Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency, including
economic harms to households, small businesses, non-profits, impacted industries,
and the public sector;

3. Replace lost public sector revenue, using this funding to provide government services
to the extent of the reduction in revenue experienced due to the pandemic;

4. Provide premium pay for essential workers, offering additional support to those who
have borne and will bear the greatest health risks because of their service in critical
infrastructure sectors; and,

5. Investin water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, making necessary investments
to Improve access to clean drinking water, support vital wastewater and stormwater
infrastructure, and to expand access to broadband internet.

WHEREAS, the ARP/CSLFRF are subject to the provisions of the federal Uniformn Grant
Guidance, 2 CFR Sect. 200 (UG), as provided in the Assistance Listine- and

WHEREAS, the Compliance and Reportine Guidance for the State and Local Fiscal Recovery
Funds provides, in relevant part:

Allowable Costs/Cost Principles. As outlined in the Uniform Guidance at 2 CFR
Part 200, Subpart E regarding Cost Principles, allowable costs are based on the
premise that a recipient is responsible for the effective administration of Federal
awards, application of sound management practices, and administration of Federal



PAGE2

funds in a2 manner consistent with the program objectives and terms and conditions

of the award. Recipients must implement robust internal controls and effective.
monitoring to ensure compliance with the Cost Principles, which are important for

building trust and accountability.

ARP/CSLFRF Funds may be, but are not required to be, used along with other funding
sources for a given project. Note that ARP/CSLFRF Funds may not be used for 2 non-
Federal cost share or match where prohibited by other Federal programs, e.g., funds
may not be used for the State share for Medicaid.

Treasury’s Interim Final Rule and guidance and the Uniform Guidance outline the
types of costs that are allowable, including certain audit costs. For example, per 2 CFR
200.425, a reasonably proportionate share of the costs of audits required by the Single
Audit Act Amendments of 1996 are allowable; however, costs for audits that were not
performed in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F are not allowable. Please
see 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart E regarding the Cost Principles for more information.

a. Administrative costs: Recipients may use funds for administering the
SLFRF program, including costs of consultants to support effective
management and oversight, including consultation for ensuring
compliance with legal, regulatory, and other requirements. Further, costs
must be reasonable and allocable as outlined in 2 CFR 200.404 and 2 CFR
200.405. Pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF Award Terms and Conditions,
recipients are permitted to charge both direct and indirect costs to their
SLFRF award as administrative costs. Direct costs are those that are
identified specifically as costs of implementing the ARP/CSLFRF program
objectives, such as contract support, materials, and supplies for a project.
Indirect costs are general overhead costs of an organization where a portion
of such costs are allocable to the ARP/CSLFRF award such as the cost of
facilities or administrative functions like a director’s office. Each category
of cost should be treated consistently in like circumstances as direct or
indirect, and recipients may not charge the same administrative costs to
both direct and indirect cost categories, or to other programs. If a recipient
has a current Negotiated Indirect Costs Rate Agreement (NICRA)
established with a Federal cognizant agency responsible for reviewing,
negotiating, and approving cost allocation plans or indirect cost proposals,
then the recipient may use its current NICRA. Alternatively, if the
recipient does not have a NICRA, the recipient may elect to use the de
minimis rate of 10 percent of the modified total direct costs pursuant to 2
CFR 200.414(.

b. Salaries and Expenses:- In general, certain employees’ wages, salaries, and
covered benefits are an eligible use of ARP/CSLFRF award funds; and




PAGE 3

WHEREAS, Subpart E of the UG dictates allowable costs and cost principles for expenditure
of ARP/CSLFRF funds; and

WHEREAS, Subpart E of the UG (specifically, 200.400) states that:
The application of these cost principles is based on the fundamental premises that:

(@)

(o)

(©

(D

(e

®

(g)

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town of Bethel

the following UG Allowable Costs and Cost Princ
ARP/CSLFRF funds.

The non-Federal entity is responsible for the efficient and effective
administration of the Federal award through the application of sound
management practices.

The non-Federal entity assumes responsibility for administering
Federal funds in a manner consistent with underlying agreements,
program objectives, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

The non-Federal entity, in recognition of its own unique combination of
staff, facilities, and experience, has the primary responsibility for
employing whatever form of sound organization and management
technigues may be necessary in order to assure proper and efficient
administration of the Federal award.

The application of these cost principles should require no significant
changes in the internal accounting policies and practices of the non-
Federal entity. However, the accounting practices of the non-Federal
entity must be consistent with these cost principles and support the
accumulation of costs as required by the principles and must provide
for adequate documentation to support costs charged to the Federal
award.

In reviewing, negotiating and approving cost allocation plans or indirect
cost proposals, the cognizant agency for indirect costs should generally
assure that the non-Federal entity is applying these cost accounting
principles on a consistent basis during their review and negotiation of
indirect cost proposals. Where wide variations exist in the treatment of
a given cost item by the non-Federal entity, the reasonableness and
equity of such treatments should be fully considered.

For non-Federal entities that educate and engage students in research,
the dual role of students as both trainees and employees (including pre-
and post-doctoral staff) contributing to the completion of Federal
awards for research must be recognized in the application of these
principles.

The non-Federal entity may not earn or keep any profit resulting from
Federal financial assistance, unless explicitly authorized by the terms
and conditions of the Federal award;

hereby adopts and enacts
iples Policy for the ‘expenditure of



PAGE 4

Town of Bethel Allowable Costs and Costs Principles Policy

I. ALLOWABLE COSTS AND COSTS PRINCIPLES POLICY OVERVIEW
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Resulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, commonly called Uniform
Guidance (UG), specifically Subpart E, defines those items of cost that are allowable, and
which are unallowable. The tests of allowability under these principles are: (a) the costs must
be reasonable; (b) they must be allocable to eligible projects under the Coronavirus State and
Local Fiscal Recovery Funds of H.R. 1319 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP/CSLFRF);
{c) they must be given consistent treatment through application of those generally accepted
accounting principles appropriate to the circumstances: and (d) they must conform to any
limitations or exclusions set forth in these principles or in the ARP/CSLFRF grant award as
to types or amounts of cost items. Unallowable items fall into two categories: expenses which
are by their nature unallowable (e.g., alcohol), and unallowable activities (e.g., fund raising).
Town of Bethel shall adhere to all applicable cost principles governing the use of federal
grants. This policy addresses the proper classification of both direct and indirect charges to
ARP/CSLFRF funded projects and enacts procedures to ensure that proposed and actual

expenditures are consistent with the ARP/CSLFRF grant award terms and all applicable
federal regulations in the UG.

Responsibility for following these guidelines lies with the Bethel Town Manager, who is
charged with the administration and financial oversight of the ARP/CSLFRF. Further, all
local government employees and officials who are mvolved in obligating, administering,
expending, or monitoring ARP/CSLFRF grant funded projects should be well versed with the
categories of costs that are generally allowable and unallowable. Questions on the
allowability of costs should be directed to the Bethel Town Manager. As questions on
allowability of certain costs may require interpretation and judgment, local

government
personnel are encouraged to ask for assistance in making those determinations.

II. GENERAL COST ALLOWARILITY CRITERIA

All costs expended using ARP/CSLFRF funds must meet the following general criteria:

1. Be necessary and reasonable for the proper and efficient performance and
administration of the grant program.

A cost must be necessary to achieve a project object. When determining whether a cost
1s necessary, consideration may be given to:

© Whether the cost is needed for the proper and efficient performance of the
grant project.

o Whether the cost is identified in the approved project budget or application.



PAGE 5

o Whether the cost aligns with identified needs based on results and findings
fz'om a needs assessment.

© Whether the cost addresses project goals and objectives and is based on
program data.

A cost is reasonable if, in its nature and amount, it does not exceed that which would be
incurred by a prudent person under the circumstances prevailing at the time the decision to
Incur the cost was made. For example, reasonable means that sound business practices were
followed, and purchases were comparable to market prices. When determining
reasonableness of a cost, consideration must be given to:

© Whether the cost is a type generally recognized as ordinary and necessary for

the operation of the Town of Bethel or the proper and efficient performance of
the federal award.

o The restraints or requirements imposed by factors, such as: sound business
practices; arm’s-length bargaining; federal, state, and other laws and
regulations; and terms and conditions of the ARP/CSLFRF award.

© Market prices for comparable goods or services for the geographic area.

o Whether individuals concerned acted with prudence in the circumstances

considering their responsibilities to Town of Bethel, its employees, the public
at large, and the federal government.

© Whether Town of Bethel significantly deviates from its established practices
and policies regarding the incurrence of costs, which may unjustifiably
increase the ARP/CSLFRF award’s cost.

2. Be allocable to the ARP/CSLFRF federal award. A cost 1s allocable to the
ARP/CSLFRF award if the goods or services involved are chargeable or assignable to
the ARP/CSLFRF award in accordance with the relative benefit received. This means
that the ARP/CSLFRF grant program derived a benefit In proportion to the funds
charged to the program. For example, if 50 percent of a local government program.
officer’s salary is paid with grant funds, then the local government must document that
the program officer spent at least 50 percent of his/her time on the grant program.

If a cost benefits two or more projects or activities in proportions that can be determined
without undue effort or cost, the cost must be allocated to the projects based on the
proportional benefit. If a cost benefits two or more projects or activities in proportions that
cannot be determined because of the interrelationship of the work involved, then the costs

may be allocated or transferred to benefitted projects on any reasonable documented basis.

Where the purchase of equipment or other capital asset is specifically authorized by the

ARP/CSLFRF, the costs are assignable to the Federal award regardless of the use that may
be made of the equipment or other capital asset involved when no longer needed for the



PAGE 6

purpose for which it was originally required.

3. Be authorized and not prohibited under state or local laws or regulations.

4. Conform to any limitations or exclusions set forth in the principles, federal
laws, ARP/CSLFRF award terms, and other governing regulations as to
types or amounts of cost items.

[41}

- Be consistent with policies, regulations, and procedures that apply
uniformly to both the ARP/CSLFRF federal award and other activities of
Town of Bethel.

6. Be accorded consistent treatment. A cost MAY NOT be assigned to a federal
award as a direct cost and also be charged to a federal award as an Indirect cost. And

a cost must be treated consistently for both federal award and non-federal award
expenditures.

=~

Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles
(GAAP), unless provided otherwise in the UGG.

8. Be net of all applicable credits. The term “applicable credits” refers to those
receipts or reduction of expenditures that operate to offset or reduce expense items
allocable to the federal award. Typical examples of such transactions are purchase
discounts; rebates or allowances; recoveries or indemnities on losses; and adjustments
of overpayments or erroneous charges. To the extent that such credits accruing to and
received by the local government related to the federal award, they shall be credited

to the ARP/CSLFRF award, either as a cost reduction or a cash refund, as appropriate
and consistent with the award terms.

9. Be adequately documented.

III. SELECTED ITEMS OF COST

The UGG examines the allowability of fifty-five (55) specific cost items (commonly referred
to as Selected Items of Cost) at 2 CFR § 200.420-.475.

The Bethel Town Manger is responsible for determining cost allowability must be familiar
with the Selected Items of Cost. The Town of Bethel must follow the applicable regulations

when charging these specific expenditures to the ARP/CSLFRF grant. The Bethel Town
Manger will check costs against the selected items of cost

allowable and that all process and documentation re
State laws, Town of Bethel regulations, and progra;

requirements to ensure the cost is
quirements are followed. In addition,
-specific rules may deem 2 cost as



PAGE 7

unallowable, and Bethel Town Manager personnel must follow those non-federal rules as
well.

Exhibit A identifies and summarizes the Selected Items of Cost.

IV. DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS

Allowable and allocable costs must be appropriately classified as direct or indirect charges.
It is essential that each item of cost be treated consistently in like circumstances either as a
direct or an indirect cost.

Direct costs are expenses that are specifically associated with a particular ARP/CSLFRF-
eligible project and that can be directly assigned to such activities relatively easily with a
high degree of accuracy. Common examples of direct costs include salary and fringe benefits
of personnel directly involved in undertaking an eligible project, equipment and supplies for

the project, subcontracted service provider, or other materials consumed or expended in the
performance of a grant-eligible project.

Indirect costs are (1) costs incurred for a common or joint purpose benefitting more than one
ARP/CSLFRF-eligible project, and (2) not readily assignable to the project specifically
benefited, without effort disproportionate to the results achieved. They are expenses that
benefit more than one project or even more than one federal grant. Common examples of

indirect costs include utilities, local telephone charges, shared office supplies, administrative
or secretarial salaries.

For indirect costs, the Town of Bethel may charge a 10 percent de minimis rate of modified
total direct costs (MTDC). According to UGG Section 200.68 MTDC means all direct salaries
and wages, applicable fringe benefits, materials and supplies, services, travel, and up to the
first $25,000 of each subaward (regardless of the period of performance the subawards under
the award). MTDC EXCLUDES equipment, capital expenditures, charges for patient care,

rental costs, tuition remission, scholarships and fellowships, participant support costs and
the portion of each subaward in excess of $25,000.

V.  SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

There are some special provisions of the UG that apply only to states, local
Indian Tribes.

§ 200.444 General costs of government.

governments, and

(2) For states, local governments, and Indian Tribes, the general costs of government
are unallowable (except as provided in § 200.475). Unallowable costs include:

(1) Szlaries and expenses of the Office of the Governor of a state or the chief
executive of a local government or the chief executive of an Indian tribe;




PAGE 8

(2) Salaries and other expenses of a state legislature, tribal council, or similar local
governmental body, such as a county supervisor, city council, school board, etc.,
whether incurred for purposes of legislation or executive direction;

(8) Costs of the judicial branch of a government;

(4) Costs of prosecutorial activities unless treated as a direct cost to a specific
program if authorized by statute or regulation (however, this does not preclude the
allowability of other legal activities of the Attorney General as described in§

200.435); and

(5) Costs of other general types of government services normally provided to the
general public, such as fire and police, unless provided for as a direct cost under a
program statute or regulation.

(b) For Indian tribes and Councils of Governments (COGs) (see definition for Local
government in § 200.1 of this part), up to 50% of salaries and expenses directly
attributable to managing and operating Federal proerams by the chief executive and
his or her staff can be included in the indirect cost calculation without documentation.

§ 200.416 Cost allocation plans and indirect cost proposals.

() For states, local governments and Indian tribes, certain services, such as motor
pools, computer centers, purchasing, accounting, ete., are provided to operating
agencies on a centralized basis. Since Federal awards are performed within the
individual operating agencies, there needs to be a process whereby these central
service costs can be identified and assigned to benefitted activities on a reasonable
and consistent basis. The central service cost allocation plan provides that process.

(b) Individual operating agencies (governmental department or agency), normally
charge Federal awards for indirect costs through an indirect cost rate. A separate
indirect cost rate(s) proposal for each operating agency is usually necessary to claim
Indirect costs under Federal awards. Indirect costs include:

(1) The indirect costs originating in each department or agency of the governmental
unit carrying out Federal awards and -

(2) The costs of central governmental services distributed through the central
service cost allocation plan and not otherwise treated as direct costs.

(c) The requirements for development and submission of cost allocation plans (for

central service costs and public assistance programs) and indirect cost rate proposals
are contained in appendices V, VI and VII to this part.



PAGE 9

§ 200.417 Interagency service.

The cost of services provided by one agency to another within the governmental unit
may include allowable direct costs of the service plus a pro-rated share of indirect
costs. A standard indirect cost allowance equal to ten percent of the direct salary and
wage cost of providing the service (excluding overtime, shift premiums, and fringe
benefits) may be used in lieu of determining the actual indirect costs of the service.
These services do not include centralized services included in central service cost
allocation plans as described in Appendix V to Part 200.

VI. COST ALLOWARILITY REVIEW PROCESS

Preapproval Cost Allowability Review
Before an ARP/CSLFRF-funded project is authorized, the Bethel Town Manager must review
the proposed cost items within an estimated project budget to determine whether they are
allowable and allocable and whether cost items will be charged as direct or indirect expenses.
This review will occur concurrently with the review of project eligibility and before obligating
or expending any ARP/CSLFRF funds.
e Local government personnel must submit proposed ARP/CSLFRF projects to Bethel
Town Manager for review. In addition to other required information, all proposed
project submissions must delineate estimated costs by cost item.

e Along with a general review of project eligibility and conformance with other
goverming board management directives, the Bethel Town Manager must review
estimated costs for specific allowable cost requirements, budget parameters, indirect
rates, fringe benefit rates, and those activities/costs that require pre-approval by the
US Treasury. Reference: Resolution Adopting an Eligible Project Policy for the
Expenditure of American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 Coronavirus State and Local
Fiscal Recovery Funds for the Town of Bethel.

If a proposed project includes a request for an unallowable cost, the Bethel Town

Manager will return the proposal to the requesting party for review and, if practicable,
resubmission with corrected cost items.

Once a proposed project budget is pre-approved by the Bethel Town Manger, the local
government personnel responsible for implementing the project must conform actual
obligations and expenditures to the pre-approved project budget.

Post-expenditure Cost Allowability Review

Once an expenditure is incurred related to an eligible project, and an invoice or other demand
for payment is submitted to the local government, the Bethel Town Manager must perform a
second review to ensure that actual expenditures comprise allowable costs.



PAGE 10

o All invoices or other demands for payment must include a breakdown by cost item.
The cost items should mirror those presented in the proposed budget for the project.
If an invoice or other demand for payment does not include a breakdown by cost item,
the Bethel Town Manager will return the invoice to the project manager and/or
vendor, contractor, or subrecipient for correction.

e The Bethel Town Manager must review the individual cost items listed on the invoice
or other demand for payment to determine their allowability and allocability.

e If all cost items are deemed allowable and properly allocable, the Bethel Town
Manager must proceed through the local government’s normal disbursement pProcess.

e If any cost item is deemed unallowable, the Bethel Town Manager will notify the
project management and/or vendor, contractor, or subrecipient that a portion of the
nvoice or other demand for payment will not be paid with ARP/CSLFRF funds. The
Bethel Town Manager may in their discretion, and consistent with this policy, allow
an invoice or other demand for payment to be resubmitted with a revised cost
allocation. If the local government remains legally obligated by contract or otherwise
to pay the disallowed cost item, it must identify other local government funds to cover

the disbursement. The Town of Bethel's governing board must approve any allocation
of other funds for this purpose.

The Bethel Town Manager must retain appropriate documentation of budgeted cost
items per project and actual obligations and expenditures of cost items per project.

VIIL. . COST TRANSFERS
Any costs charged to the ARP/CSLFRF federal award that do not meet the allowable cost

criteria must be removed from the award account and charged to an account that does not
require adherence to federal UGG or other applicable guidelines.

Failure to adequately follow this policy and related procedures could result in questioned
costs, audit findings, potential repayment of disallowed costs and discontinuance of funding.

I, Carl Wilson, Mayor of the Town of Bethel, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a

true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the Bethel Board of Commissioners at its
meeting held on December 2, 2024.

Mayor



PAGE 11

Attest:

Clerk



PAGE 12

EXHIBIT A

Selected Items of Cost

Uniform
Guidance
General
Reference

Allowability

Advertising and public relations
costs

2 CFR § 200.421

Allowable with restrictions

Agdvisory councils

2 CFR § 200.422

Allowable with restrictions

Alcoholic beverages

2 CFR § 200.423

Unallowable

Alumni/ae activities

2 CFR § 200.424

Not specifically addressed

Audit services

2 CFR § 200.425

Allowable with restrictions

Bad debts

costs

2 CFR § 200.426 | Unallowable
Bonding costs 2 CFR § 200.427 | Allowable with restrictions
Collection of improper payments 2 CFR § 200.428 | Allowable
Commencement and convocation 2 CFR § 200.429 | Not specifically addressed

Compensation — personal services

2 CFR § 200.430

Allowable with restrictions;
Special conditions apply (e.g.. §
200.430@)(5))

Compensation — fringe benefits

2 CFR § 200.431

Allowable with restrictions

Conferences

2 CFR § 200.432

Allowable with restrictions

Contingency provisions

2 CFR § 200.433

Unallowable with exceptions

Contributions and donations

2 CFR § 200.434

Unallowable (made by non-
federal entity); not
reimbursable but value may be
used as cost sharing or

matching (made to non-federal
entity)

Defense and prosecution of

2 CFR § 200.435

Allowable with restrictions




PAGE 13

criminal and civil proceedings,
claims, appeals and patent
infringements

Depreciation

2 CFR § 200.436

Allowable with qualifications

Employee health and welfare costs

2 CFR § 200.437

Allowable with restrictions

Entertainment costs

2 CFR § 200.438

Unallowable with exceptions

Equipment and other capital
expenditures

2 CFR § 200.439

Allowability based on specific
requirement

Exchange rates

2 CFR § 200.440

Allowable with restrictions

Fines, penalties, damages and
other settlements

2 CFR § 200.441

Unallowable with exceptions

Fund raising and investment
management costs

2 CFR § 200.442

Unallowable with exceptions

Gains and losses on disposition of
depreciable assets

2 CFR § 200.443

Allowable with restrictions

General costs of government

2 CFR § 200.444

Unallowable with exceptions

Goods and services for personal
use

2 CFR § 200.445

Unallowable (goods/services);
allowable (housing) with
restrictions

Idle facilities and idle capacity

2 CFR § 200.446

Idle facilities - unallowable
with exceptions; Idle capacity -
allowable with restrictions

Insurance and indemnification

2 CFR § 200.447

Allowable with restrictions

Intellectual property 2 CFR § 200.448 | Allowable with restrictions
Interest 2 CFR § 200.449 | Allowable with restrictions
Lobbying 2 CFR § 200.450 | Unallowable

Losses on other awards or
contracts

2 CFR § 200.451

Unallowable (however, they
are required to be included in
the indirect cost rate base for
allocation of indirect costs)




PAGE 14

Maintenance and repair costs

2 CFR § 200.452

Allowable with restrictions

Materials and supplies costs,
including costs of computing
devices

2 CFR § 200.453

Allowable with restrictions

Memberships, subscriptions, and
professional activity costs

2 CFR § 200.454

Allowable with restrictions;
unallowable for lobbying
organizations

Organization costs

2 CFR § 200.455

Unallowable except federal
prior approval

Participant support costs

2 CFR § 200.456

Allowable with prior approval
of the federal awarding agency

Plant and security costs

2 CFR § 200.457

Allowable; capital expenditures
are subject to § 200.439

Pre-award costs

2 CFR § 200.458

Allowable if consistent with
other allowabilities and with
prior approval of the federal
awarding agency

Professional services costs

2 CFR § 200.459

Allowable with restrictions

Proposal costs

2 CFR § 200.460

Allowzable with restrictions

Publication and printing costs

2 CFR § 200.461

Allowable with restrictions

Rearrangement and reconversion
COSts

2 CFR § 200.462

Allowable (ordinary and
normal)

Recruiting costs

2 CFR § 200.463

Allowable with restrictions

Relocation costs of employees

2 CFR § 200.464

Allowable with restrictions

Rental costs of real property and
equipment

2 CFR § 200.465

Allowable with restrictions

Scholarships and student aid costs

2 CFR § 200.466

Not specifically addressed

Selling and marketing costs

2 CFR § 200.467

Unallowable with exceptions

Specialized service facilities

2 CFR § 200.468

Allowable with restrictions




PAGE 15

Student activity costs 2 CFR § 200.469 | Unallowable unless specifically
provided for in the federal
award

Taxes (including Value Added 2 CFR § 200.470 | Allowable with restrictions

Tax)

Termination costs 2 CFR § 200.471 | Allowable with restrictions

Training and education costs 2 CFR § 200.472 | Allowable for employee
development

Transportation costs 2 CFR § 200.473 | Allowable with restrictions

Travel costs 2 CFR § 200.474 | Allowable with restrictions

Trustees 2 CFR § 200.475 | Not specifically addressed




s

E & ASSOCIATES, INC.

R T R T

®
1 V ers ENGINEERS PLANNERS SURVEYGRS LANDSCAPE ARCHITELTS

ATTACHMENT B

November 26, 2024
Sent Via Email

Mr. D. Scott Elliot

Interim Town Manager
Town of Bethel

141 West Railroad Street
Bethel, North Caroiina 27812

REFERENCE: Professional Services Agreement
Smith Street Park, Phase 1 improvements: Planning, Landscape Architecture and
Civii Engineering
Between Smith St. & Barnhill St south of Lincoln St.
Bethel, North Carolina 27812

Dear Scott,

Rivers & Associates, Inc., hereinafter referred to as ENGINEER, is pleased to offer its Planning,

Park Design and Civil Engineering Services to the TOWN OF BETHEL, hereinafter referred to as
CLIENT, for the referenced project as follows:

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: All Planning, Landscape Architecture and Engineering

Services will be provided to CLIENT in accordance with the General Terms and Conditions outlined
in EXHIBIT D, which by reverence, is made a part hereof.

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: The project consists of approximately 3.55 acres, located in the block
south of Lincoin Street, between Smith Street and Barnhill S

treet, as shown on Exhibit A, within
the Town of Bethel, North Carolina. The work includes Phase 1 improvements to the existing park

as shown, aiong with future phase features, on the attached Exhibit B, Smith St. Park, dated April
2023, by Pitt County Planning Department, which by reference, is made 2 part hereof. The Phase
1 work is comprised of installation and associated constru
are being purchased with funds received from 2 Rural Tra
as shown in Exhibit C: +/-9 (nine) pieces of
outdoor fitness equipment, etc. CLIENT prop
enjoyment by CLIENT’S residents and visitors
physical fitness activities.

ction of facilities and equipment that
nsformation Grant and other sources,
playground equipment and +/-5 (five) pieces of
Oses 1o construct the new facilities for use and
who will use the facilities for casual recreation and

Six Ferks Place lll = 333 £ Six Forks Road, Suite 230 = Faieigh, NC 27609 = Phone: 919-594-1626

NCBELS Uc. No. F-0334 www.riversandassociaies.com NCBOLA Lic. No. G-312




SCOPE OF WORK: ENGINEER will produce a preliminary Concept Master Plan based on Exhibit B
for review and approval by the Interim Town Manager. Limited Construction Drawings for
Phase 1 of the site construction and installation for the project will include those facilities listed
in exhibit C. However, any structural design and/or detailing of footings is carried in this
proposal as an allowance. This proposal excludes existing conditions/topographic/tree survey
and geotechnical exploration which will be performed in Phase 2 of the design services.
However, we propose an allowance to cover limited survey of selected locations to determine
proposed elevations of the Phase 1 facilities. Plans production will include standard items
necessary for construction, but will not address zoning code requirements. General contractor
bidding, contract execution and construction administration or observation may be performed
on an hourly basis as requested/directed by the CLIENT and agreed upon with the ENGINEER.

DESIGN SERVICES: ENGINEER will begin this work by scheduling concept design production
upon receipt of a CLIENT signed copy of this proposal. Engineer and consultants will visit the
site as needed 1o make observations to facilitate the design phase. ENGINEER will serve as
CLIENT’S professional representative in those areas or phases of the project to which this
agreement applies and will give consultation and advice to CLIENT during the performance of
the work as described herein. Plans to be provided to CLIENT will include: preliminary existing
conditions plan, site plan with select elevations and associated supporting details & notes.

Qutline specifications will be shown, as needed, on the plans, not in a separate specification

book. This work includes one (1) ENGINEER representative meeting with CLIENT to review and
resolve issues and concerns that CLIENT may raise regarding the plans.

ENGINEER will conduct a preliminary review of the CLENT selected equipment to ascertain
whether aiternate equipment should be considered for use within Phase 1 of the work.

PERMITTING SERVICES: Site permitting and associated activities will be provided to CLIENT

on an hourly basis, as requested and directed by CLIENT and agreed upon with the
ENGINEER.

CONTRACTOR BIDDING & CONTRACT AWARD SERVICES- ENGINEER will support CLIENT, on
an hourly basis, as requested and directed by CLIENT, and agreed upon with the ENGINEER,
in their project construction bidding process, contract award and associated activities.

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION/OBSERVATION: ENGINEER and consultants will provide
periodic inspections of construction progress in accordance with standard EJIDC Engineering

Agreement and on an hourly basis, as requested and directed by CLIENT and agreed upon
with the ENGINEER.




CLIENT PROVIDED INFORMATION/COORDINATION: Throughout the duration of the services
provided by ENGINEER, as per this proposal, CLIENT will provide to ENGINEER, information,
documentation and coordination including, but not limited to, the following:
e Plans, details, cut sheets, etc. for City standard sidewalks, pavement sections, etc.
for construction at this location.
® Record plats and surveys of the site to coordinate topographic survey.

° Water and sanitary sewer data (size, location, materials, etc.) for structures & pipes
in the vicinity.

COMPENSATION: For the Planning, Landscape Architecture and Engineering Services
outlined herein, Rivers and Associztes, Inc. will be compensated by CLIENT as follows:

PRE-DESIGN SERVICES:

SURVEY: Allowance $1,500.00

GOETECHNICAL EXPLORATION: Allowance $3,500.00
DESIGN SERVICES: Lump Sum $12,000.00
STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING: Allowance $2,300.00
PERMITTING SERVICES: Hourly
CONTRACTOR BIDDING & CONTRACT AWARD SERVICES: Hourly
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION/OBSERVATION: Hourlvy
TOTAL: $19,300.00

SERVICES NOT INCLUDED:

=

Economic analysis or services.

Town of Bethel historical, cultural, commercial and recreational research.
Graphics, color renderings, elevations and perspective sketches.

Permit fees, application fees, submittal fees and/or recordation fees.
Printing cost, postage and/or special handling.

Design of irrigation, fire sprinkler / backflow and signage.

Mileage and Printing Costs.

Street improvements.

Record Drawings.

© 0 NGO Y AW

oY
o

- Storm water management on-site control measure “SCM”.

- Easement and/or Encroachment Documents, including Final Certification.
- Design of septic and/or well water systems.

- 1T, AV, security, etc. design.

. Grease trap or Health Department review.

- Energy Code calculations.

- Environmental, hidden or hazardous materials investigation, reporting or permitting.

el el el e o )
[o) Y1 B S OV T Ny %

G2



17. All other services that are not expressly described in this proposal.

ENGINEER would be pleased to provide CLIENT with these services and/or other services
that were not outlined herein that you may deem necessary at the appropriate time.
Additional Services, when requested, will be authorized in writing via letter or email and
will be provided at ENGINEER’S and ENGINEER’S consultant’s then-current hourly rates

and/or as may be agreed upon. Our current hourly rates are shown on the attached Fee
Schedule as EXHIBIT C.

Again, we appreciate the opportunity to submit this Agreement for vour review and
consideration. If you find this Agreement acceptable, please sign each copy and return one
copy to our oftice. We will begin work as indicated above. This agreement will remain open
for vour review, consideration and acceptance for a period of thirty (30) calendar days.

Should you have any questions or wish to discuss any of

the above items, please contact
Paul Meder at (919) 215-2492 or me at (252) 714-3002.

SMITH STREET PARK, PHASE 1 IMPROVEMENTS:

ACCEPTED and copy received

TOWN OF BETHEL RIVERS & ASSOCIATES, INC.

T Digimany sioned by J. Stephen Janowski
: C=US.

J. Stephen Janowskisassghmmmieon
By:

By:

—— = Datet2024.71.26 06:19:38-0500"

Name, Title: D. Scott Elliot
Interim Town Manager

J. Stephen Janowski, P.E.
Title: Raleigh Office Director

Date: Date:




EXHIBIT A

Park Site Location

S maeems Ao e

- = &= oo e
A —ras T Owmr Al Tytey == — L .
Se==hi FEEELTORNGE Teele—re ez < = = e
Mzae Pt o X Premieer Sorster T 2
Deeclx Done: Aipiear e DoTITmen Ty e e e &
S ) o o . ¢ ey oing soees P
e £ Py === CROTIIIT S o S
= e - o = ﬂg&ﬂﬁ.mﬂl&lﬁ!ﬁ:
NomteorImes: : Nepmomer: azes X SS¥ed 2t sheeestiorec oobic
I = - i e Y=o somacTene te
Trar3ain Tememyast Sna St S venfoate P Soomy
z Aoy e S T ec ! mmermbiy i e
s - 5 [ s
i s Eprex: Y TOYTED R P Sy

ImFmTem Vass

h



Smith Street Park

EXHIBIT B

Town of Bethel - Preliminary Concept Plan

= Benchws
= Foex H i

T amtnesmr
@B vicing Pz TR

5 Restrooms

Gazenc

Storage )
Parking 2

B vk

AR
v T S T AT

- nw B

Corncession J

X




EXHIBIT C
Smith Street Park Equipment List

Playground Equipment:
e Large area in center of park

8 Pieces Total:
e Ditch Plains Playground Set
e StemPlay BB 3296
e 48 Luge Slide
e Meta Rocker {x2)
e Dynamic Surfer {x2)
e Swings Set 2 Bay 8' arch 5" Swing Frame

Music Set: 3 Piece Musical Set
e PlayEnsemble NU-2864

Exercise Equipment List:
e Spread out across the walking trail.
e Paired with a bench near by.

5 Pieces Total:
e Invigorate Hand Cycle Fit 3112
e Invigorzte Elliptical FIT 2623
® Invigorate Recumbent Bike FIT2992
® Invigorate Chest Press FIT 2924

e Invigorate Strider FIT 2925
Picnic Sheters:

o 12x12
o 16x24

Sterage Barn:
° 10x20

Benches:
e 7

Picnic Tables:
e 4



(V3]

L

EXHIBIT D
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
AGREEMENT BETWEEN ENGINEER AND OWNER

GENERAL: ENGINEER intends to serve as the CLIENT’s professional representative for those services
provided under this Agreement and to provide advice and consultation to the CLIENT as a professional. Any
opinions of probable project costs, approvals, and other decisions made by ENGINEER, for the CLIENT are
rendered on all services for this project in accordance with generally accepted professional practices. ENGINEER
will not provide or offer to provide services inconsistent with Or conirary to such practices nor make any warranty
Or guarantee, expressed or implied, nor have any agresment or contract for services subject to the provisions of
any uniform commercial code. Similarly, ENGINEER will not accept those terms and conditions offered by the
CLIENT in its purchase order, requisition, or notice of authorization to proceed, except as set forth herein or
expressly accepted in writing. Written acknowledgment of receipt or the actual performance of services
subsequent to receipt, of any such purchase order, Tequisition, or notice of authorization to proceed is specifically
deemed not to constitute acceptance of any terms or conditions contrary to those set forth herein.

AMENDMENTS: This Agreement, upon
instrument signed by both parties.

execution by both parties hereto, can be amended only by written

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: This Agreement shall be binding
and assigns. Nothing herein shall be construed as
the CLIENT and ENGINEER.

upon the parties hereto, their heirs, successors
giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than

TERMINATION: This Agreement may be terminated by either party by seven (7) days written notice in the
event of a substantial failure to perform in accordance with the terms hereof by one party, through no fault of the
other party. In the event of terminaticn by the CLIENT in accordance with this paragraph, the ENGINEER shall
be compensated as provided for under paragraph “Compensation, Termination or Delay™.

COMPENSATION, TERMINATION OR DELAY: If any phase of
taree (3) months, or abandoned after written notice from the CL » or if the Agreement is terminated for any
reason any time prior to the corpletion of the PROJECT, the ENGINEER shal] be paid for services performed
prior to the receipt of such written motice from the CLIENT, based upon hourly rates for the time actually

expended prior to termination, together with any reimbursable expenses and any actual ow-of-pocket costs
incurred by the ENGINEER as a result of said termination.

the PROJECT is suspended for more than

PAYMENT OF ACCOUNT: During the performance of work under this Agreement, the ENGINEER shall
submit monthly invoices to the CLIENT for services rendered to date. Payments to the ENGINEER shall be
made within thirty (30) days following receipt of invoice. Interest shall be charged on the unpaid baiance of any
mnvoi id wi , at the maximum rate allowable by law. Inthe even:
that any invoice of any portion thereof shall remain unpaid for 2 period of sixty (60) days after the date of receipt
thereof, the ENGINEER may, after giving seven (7) days written notice to the CLIENT, suspend the performance
of service under this Agreement umti] all mvoices issued prior thereto have been paid in fuil

/. SERVICE DURING CONSTRUCTION: Nothing in this Agre

ENGINEER the responsibility or authority or direct to supervise construction raeans. methods, techniques,

sequence. or procedures of construction selected by contractors or subcontractors or the safety precautions and
programs incident io the work of the contractors or subcontractors.

ement shall be construed as giving the



10.

11.

CONSTRUCTION INDEMNIFICATION: In the event that the CLIENT under_taks the per_fonnancc of the
responsibilides of the construction phase, or 2ny portion thereof, or retains the services of any third party to camy
out anty of these responsibilities, the CLIENT agrees to inderonify, save and hold the ENi GII\!EER harmless from
liability for any omissions of the CLIENT, its officers, agents or employees, or any party hired by the CLIENT
to perform said responsibilities, during the performance of any phase of the work undertaken by the CLIENT.
USE AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS: All documents mchuding Drawings and Specifications prepared
or furnished by the ENGINEER (and ENGINEER’s independent professional associztes and consultants)
pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of service in respect of the Project and ENGINEER shall retain an
ownership and property interest therein whether or not the Project is completed. CLIENT may, at their expense,
obtain and retain copies for information and reference in connection with the use and occupancy of the Project by
CLIENT and others; however, such documents zre not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by CLIENT
or others on extensions of the Project or on any other project. Any reuse without written verification or adaptation
oy ENGINEER for the specific purpose intended will be at CLIENT s sole risk and without liability or legal
exposure to ENGINEER, or to ENGINEERs independent professional associates or consultants, and OWNER
shell indemmify and hold harmiess ENGINEER and EN GINEER’s independent professional associates and
consultants from all claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorneys’ fees arising out of or resulting
therefore. Any such verification or adaptation will eatitle ENGINEER to further compensation at rates to be
agreed upon by CLIENT and ENGINEER.

If required in the letter agreement, the ENGINEER will provide electronic files of drawings in AutoCAD 2010
DWG or DXF format for the CLIENTs use under the conditions indicated above. The ENGINEER will not be
responsible for the data in the electronic files after 60 days. The files will be submitted on CD or Zip Disk. The

ENGINEER’s name and seal may be removed from the drawings. Use and Ownership of Docaments applies
to all electronic files.

INSURANCE: ENGINEER will maintain insurance coverage in the following amounts:

Workman’s Compensation

Statutory
General Lizbility

Bodily Injury and Property Damage $1,000,000
Automobile Liability

Bodily Injury and Property Damage $1,000.000 inclusive

If the CLIENT requires coverage or limits in addition to

the above stated amounts, premiums for additional
insurance shall be paid by the CLIENT.

EXCLUSION: For services mvolving or related 10 hazardous waste elements of this agreement, it is further
agreed that the CLIENT shall indemnify and hold harmless ENGINEER and his consultants, agents and
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, direct and indirect, or consequential
damages, including but not limited to fees and charges of attorneys and court and arbitration costs, arisine out of
or resuiting from the performance of the work of the i i i - T

¥ - - - - = =
work of others, related to hazerdous waste activities.

The above indemnification provision extends to claims against ENGINEER which arise out of, are relateq to, or
are based upon, the dispersal, discharge, escape, release o

1 I e di T saturation of smoke Vvapors, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis,
toxic chemicals, liquids, 8ases or any other material, irritant, contaminant or pollutant in or into the atmosphere,
Or on, onto, upon, in or into the surface or subsurfa

: _ g ce (2) soil, (b) water or watercourses, (c) objects, or (d) any
tengible or intangible matter, whether sudden or not.



ATTACHMENT 1
RIVERS AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
STANDARD RATES
Effective November 30, 2024

EMPILOYEE CLASSIFICATION:
RATES:

Principal

Sr. Project Mapager I

Sr. Project Meanager I

Project Manager TIT

Project Manager 11

Project Manager I

Sr. Project Engineer
Project Engineer IV
Project Engineer 111
Project Engineer IT
Project Engineer I
Design Engineer I1
Design Engineer |

Landscape Architect/ Project Manager I
Landscape Architect/ Project Manager I
Senior Landscape Architect

Landscape Architect

Landscape Desigoer 111

Landscape Designer II

Landscape Designer I

Project Planner |
Planner IT
Planner I

Designer I'V
Designer ITI
Designer T
Designer |

CAD Technician 11
CAD Technicizn 11
CAD Techuician I

Project Surveyor IV
Project Surveyor 111
Project Surveyor II
Project Surveyor |
Party Chief vV

Party Chief IV

Party Chief 111

Party Chief T1

Party Chief [

Surveyor Technician 1]
Surveyor Technician I]

10

HOURLY

$205.00
$200.00
$185.00
$175.00
$165.00
$150.00

S185.00
$160.00
$150.00
S135.00
$120.00
$110.00
$100.00

$160.00
$143.00
$150.00
$115.00
$120.00
$105.00

$95.00

$105.00
$95.00
$83.00

$140.00
$120.00
$105.00

$80.00

$85.00
$80.00
$75.00

$150.00
$130.00
$115.00
$100.00
$120.00
$100.00
$90.00
$75.00
563.00
$75.00
$65.00



Surveyor Technician ]

1-Man Robotic TI
1-Man Robotic T

Resident Project Representative IV
Resident Project Representative I11
Resident Project Representative IT
Resident Project Representative

Administrative Assistant 11
Administrative Assistanr II
Administrative Assistant T
Field Tech

Intern Tech

Sub-Consultants and Feeg

Travel

Miscellaneous Expenses

11

§55.00

$150.00
$110.00

$113.00
$100.00
$85.00
$70.00

$85.00
$80.00
$70.00

$70.00
$45.00

.15 x Cost
Current IRS Rate
Cost



G1

INTERIM TOWN MANAGER o T BOARD OF COMMISIONERS
D. Scott Elliott e Carl Wilson, Mayor
58 o Barbara Bynum, Mayor Pro Temp
W ) Ferrell Blount
iR - Thomas Lilley
sas Tina Staton
Fred Whitehurst

TOWN OF BETHEL
Agenda Abstract

Meeting Date/Time: January 7, 2025

Agenda Section: PRESENTATION

Agenda Title: Jennifer Lanier-Coward, Director of Parks and Recreation, Pitt County

Presenter: Jennifer Lanier-Coward

Summary of Information: Pitt County’s newly formulated Department of Parks and
Recreation has asked to come before the Town Board and make brief remarks. The
department’s first director, Jennifer Lanier-Coward, will address the board. (This matter was
continued from 12-2-2024 due to the presenter being unable to attend the meeting.)

Submitter Recommendations/Motions: None - Information only.

Number of Attachments: None



G2

INTERIM TOWN MANAGER g L e, BOARD OF COMMISIONERS
D. Scott Elliott el Carl Wilson, Mayor
il Y A Barbara Bynum, Mayor Pro Temp
N Ferrell Blount
St Thomas Lilley
sazs Tina Staton

Fred Whitehurst

TOWN OF BETHEL
Agenda Abstract

Meeting Date/Time: January 7, 2025

Agenda Section: PRESENTATION

Agenda Title: Town of Bethel's Grant Administrator Report

Presenter: Kelsi Dew

Summary of Information: Kelsi Dew has served as a paid part-time grant
administrator/writer for the Town of Bethel. She is paid primarily out of eligible
administrative costs allowed for by the grants. Ms. Dew will provide a brief report
concerning her activities.

Submitter Recommendations/Motions: None - Information only.

Number of Attachments: None



